
Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 29 September 2023 

 Page 1 

Agenda 

 
Contact: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services 
Telephone: 07895 213735 
Email: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 21 September 2023  
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

 

A meeting of the  

Cabinet 

 
will be held on Friday 29 September 2023 at 10.30 am  
Meeting Room 1, Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon, OX14 3JE 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   
 

Cabinet Members: 
Councillors  
Bethia Thomas (Chair) Andy Crawford 
Neil Fawcett (Vice-Chair) Debra Dewhurst 
Sue Caul  Andy Foulsham 
Mark Coleman Helen Pighills 
  

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 
 

Agenda 

 

Open to the Public including the Press 
 

1. Apologies for absence  
  
To record apologies for absence.   
 

2. Minutes  
(Pages 3 - 5)  
  
To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 11 
August 2023.   

mailto:carole.nicholl@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
https://www.youtube.com/c/SouthandValeCommitteeMeetings


Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 29 September 2023 

 Page 2 

 

3. Declarations of interests  
  
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, other registrable interests and 
non-registrable interests or any conflicts of interest in respect of items on the agenda for 
this meeting. 
 

4. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
  
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, and 
to receive any announcements from the chair. 
 

5. Public participation  
  
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered 
to speak. 
 

6. Recommendations and updates from other committees  
  
To consider any recommendations to Cabinet from other committees.   
 

7. Drayton Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review 
Adoption  

(Wards Affected: Drayton)  
(Pages 6 - 35)  
  
To consider the head of planning’s report.   
 

8. Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary 
Review Adoption  

(Wards Affected: Stanford)  
(Pages 36 - 76)  
  
To consider the head of planning’s report.   
 



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes - Friday, 11 August 2023  

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Cabinet 

 

 
held on Friday 11 August 2023 at 10.30 am 
in Meeting Room 1, Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon, OX14 3JE  
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room:  
Cabinet members: Councillors Bethia Thomas (Chair), Sue Caul, Andy Foulsham and 
Helen Pighills 
Officer: Steve Culliford (Democratic Services Team Leader)  
 
Remote attendance:  
Cabinet members: Councillors Debra Dewhurst and Debby Hallett  
Officers: Patrick Arran (Head of Legal and Democratic), Nigel Bower (Housing Delivery 
Manager), Andrew Busby (Head of Development and Corporate Landlord), Suzanne 
Malcolm (Deputy Chief Executive – Place), Mark Minion (Head of Corporate Services), 
Tom Oruye (Head of Policy and Programmes), Richard Spraggett (Strategic Financial 
Manager), and Mark Stone (Chief Executive)  

 
 

21. Apologies for absence  
 
Councillors Mark Coleman, Andy Crawford and Neil Fawcett had sent their apologies for 
absence.   
 

22. Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the public and exempt minutes of the Cabinet meetings held on 
23 June and 3 July 2023 as correct records and agree that the Chair signs them as such.   
 

23. Declarations of interests  
 
None 
 

24. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
Cabinet noted the evacuation arrangements in the event of an emergency.   
 

25. Public participation  
 
None 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes - Friday, 11 August 2023  

26. Recommendations and updates from other committees  
 
Cabinet received updates from the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee, together with recommendations from the Scrutiny Committee on the 
grant funding affordable housing item (minute 27 refers).   
 

27. Grant Funding Affordable Housing  
 
Cabinet considered the head of housing and environment’s report on grant funding 
affordable housing projects.   
 
Members recalled that the Housing Delivery Strategy, adopted in November 2022, had 
recommended a refresh of the policy and criteria used to assess grant applications for 
affordable housing projects.  The scheme was funded by using commuted sums received 
from Section 106 agreements, generated by housing developments in the district.   
 
The report set out proposed changes to the policy, which aimed to increase the delivery of 
affordable housing and to make the grant application process easier and more 
transparent.  The Cabinet member for affordable housing, infrastructure, development and 
governance believed that the criteria within the policy should not be too prescriptive.  The 
main aim was to ensure the Section 106 funds were spent, and the corporate objective of 
delivering affordable housing was met.   
 
The revised policy had been considered by Scrutiny Committee on 31 July 2023.  The 
committee had made the following suggested changes:  

 Strengthen wording in the report to emphasise that the money for bids is ring-fenced 

 Paragraphs 20-21 in the report – clarity requested on the spend limits for full Council 
approval  

 Paragraph 3 of the policy – clarify wording to explain this applies to housing sums 
only 

 Paragraph 4 of the policy – amend wording to explain the delivery of affordable 
housing and that affordable housing in perpetuity was a requirement  

 Paragraph 4 of the policy – distinguish between essential and desirable.  It was 
confirmed that this was in line with the Housing Strategy   

 Wording requested in the policy to explain that a report on the assessment of the bid 
would be shared with the applicant   

 The criteria from page 2 of the policy could have more explanation, without being 
overly prescriptive as this may deter some bidders   

 Please remove undefined acronyms or provide explanation, as it is a public facing 
document  

 Please clarify what “low cost” housing means.  Officer to add wording on asking 
bidders to explain what the resident’s experience would be for utilities/low cost 
housing   

 Make “low running costs” a markable criteria.  This would include non-carbon utilities 
such as water   

 Clarity needed on what “adding social value” is   

 On page 3 of the policy, the committee believes that the wording suggested for South 
Oxfordshire on gas boilers being given a rating of zero should be replicated for Vale, 
but with reconsideration of the wording.  The committee is keen to balance 
encouraging bids with the commitment the council has to tackle the climate 
emergency, noting that officers are intending to not exclude potential properties that 
already have gas boilers installed, but will work with bidders to move towards efficient 

Page 4



Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes - Friday, 11 August 2023  

zero carbon options that have low running costs.  If gas boilers scored low, this is one 
of many criteria and should not deter bidders if the wording is considered carefully   

 Check whether bidders need to provide architect’s drawings at this stage   
 
Cabinet considered it was important to update the policy to encourage applications for 
grant funding to provide more affordable housing in the Vale.  Cabinet thanked Scrutiny 
Committee for its suggestions, which were accepted with one exception.  Members did not 
support the suggestion that gas boilers should receive a zero-rating in the criteria.  
Instead, the council should encourage applicants to provide affordable homes with green 
energy solutions.  The wording in the policy should be strengthened to reflect this.  Each 
application would be assessed against the various criteria and officers would make a 
recommendation to Cabinet.  If members approved the application, Cabinet would make a 
recommendation to Council to approve the necessary funding.   
 
To allow officers to incorporate the changes suggested by Scrutiny Committee, the 
Cabinet member proposed a second recommendation to authorise the deputy chief 
executive – place, in consultation with the Cabinet member for affordable housing, 
infrastructure, development and governance, to make any minor amendments and 
corrections to the policy.   
 
The policy needed to reflect the council’s corporate priorities but should not exclude 
anyone.  Members suggested that the website should promote good case studies to 
further encourage applications.   
 
The Cabinet member reported that the policy would be reviewed within one year to ensure 
that it was operating effectively.   
 
RESOLVED: to  
 
(a) adopt the revised Affordable Housing Section 106 Commuted Sums Grant Policy for 

the awarding of S.106 grant funding to affordable housing projects in the district; and 
 
(b) authorise the deputy chief executive – place, in consultation with the Cabinet member 

for affordable housing, infrastructure, development and governance, to make any 
minor amendments and corrections to the policy.   

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 11.08 am 
 
 
 
Chair:        Date:  

Page 5



 
 

Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Planning 

Author: Samantha Allen 

Telephone: 07717 274692 

E-mail: samantha.allen@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: Drayton Ward 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Andy Foulsham 

E-mail: andy.foulsham@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 29 September 2023 

 

 

Drayton Conservation Area Appraisal and 

Boundary Review Adoption 

Recommendations 

(a) That the Drayton Conservation Area boundary is adopted as per the proposed 
revisions shown at Appendix 1. 

(b) That the Drayton Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan as amended 
following public consultation is adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 
as part of the Development Plan evidence and is a material planning consideration.  

(c) To delegate to the Head of Planning in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member 
to make minor changes, typographical corrections or non-material amendments to the 
Drayton Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan document prior to formal 
publication and statutory notification requirements.  

 

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of the representations received 
during the public consultation on the draft Drayton Conservation Area Appraisal and 
Boundary Review and to detail the changes that have been made to the document as a 
result in order to seek formal adoption of the boundary and associated document.  

Corporate Objectives  

2. The Appraisal accords with 2020-2024 Corporate Objectives 1 (Providing the homes 
people need) and 3 (Building healthy communities). The document also forms part of 
the development plan evidence base supporting the preservation and enhancement of 
the district’s historic environment.  

Page 6

Agenda Item 7

mailto:samantha.allen@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andy.foulsham@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 
 

Background 

Purpose of the Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review 

3. Under Sections 69 & 71 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 local authorities have a duty to designate conservation areas and from time to 
time to review the boundaries.  Such areas are defined as ‘areas of special 
architectural or historic interest, the character or appearance of which it is desirable to 
preserve or enhance’. The Drayton Conservation Area Appraisal Document is the 
mechanism by which the local authority defines the special interest of the area, and the 
boundary was reviewed during the writing of the document. 

4. Drayton Parish Council, in conjunction with their Neighbourhood Plan Review, 
commissioned a review of the designated conservation area and production of an 
Appraisal and Management Plan. 

5. Officers were satisfied that the draft document and proposed boundary extension met 
with the tests of Historic England’s guidance for Conservation Area designation and 
appraisal and the draft documents were issued for a public consultation.  

6. Internal consultation was undertaken in September 2022 and feedback and responses 
received fed into the draft document that was issued for public consultation.  

7. A four-week period of public consultation commenced on Wednesday 18 January 
2023, closing on Wednesday 15 February 2023. Hard copies of the document were 
provided at the Drayton Village Hall and Abingdon Library. We were assisted with the 
advertising of the consultation by the parish clerk. 

8. Under Section 71 of the above act, we have exercised our duty to formulate and 
produce proposals for the preservation and enhancement of the conservation area. 
The appraisal document once adopted will form part of the evidence base for the 
Development Plan. It should be used in the development management process to 
manage positive change within the designated conservation area or its setting to 
minimise harm and encourage preservation or enhancement. 

Statement of Consultation Methodology 

9. This SPD has been prepared and consulted upon in accordance with the Council’s 
Statement of Community Involvement (Dec 2022).  

10. Appended to this statement is a full Consultation Report (Appendix 2) which outlines 
the methodology for consultation in accordance with the requirements set out in the 
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (Regulation 
13), the full results and how these were reviewed.  

11. The Consultation Report summarises how relevant issues have been addressed and 
supports the proposed adoption of the Conservation Area Appraisal and Management 
Plan for Drayton as an SPD in accordance with Regulation 14 of the above regulations.  

Summary of the Appraisal Document and alterations to the Proposed Boundary 

12. This document has been commissioned and produced by Drayton Parish Council 
following on from work undertaken as part of their Neighbourhood Plan. The 

Page 7



 
 

conservation team have reviewed draft versions of the document and advised on 
changes necessary to ensure the content is appropriate and compliant with current 
good practice for the production of appraisal and management plans as well as being 
consistent with council documents. The Conservation Team recognise the work 
undertaken by Drayton Parish Council and support the adoption of the appraisal. 

13. The document provides a summary of the history of Drayton and its development, an 
assessment of its historic and architectural interest, a gazetteer of local interest 
buildings (non-listed structures) and illustrative maps showing various details of spatial 
and character analysis. 

14. During a review of the existing Conservation Area boundary, the Parish Council have 
identified areas that are of sufficient interest and significance to be considered for 
inclusion within the designated boundary (see map at Appendix 1). The Conservation 
Team have also reviewed the proposed areas for inclusion and are in agreement with 
the Parish Council that these areas meet the tests to be included in the designated 
area and support the proposed revisions to the existing boundary. 

Proposed changes to the Designated Boundary 

15. There are three areas where the existing Conservation Area Boundary is proposed for 
revision. The proposals are shown at Appendix 1.  

 Extension to add the historic core of Sutton Wick and Millennium Green, to the 
north.  

 Extension to add an area east of Church Lane. 

 Extension to add a small area west of Abingdon Road, across from High Street. 

Summary of consultation responses received  

16. In total, 14 responses were received during the public consultation period. This is made 
up of 10 responses via the online survey and 4 responses via email. 

17. Further detail and the list of responses can be found in Appendix 2, the Drayton 
Consultation Report produced by the Consultation and Community Engagement Team. 

18. Overall, the responses received were generally supportive of the content of the 
document. Summaries of the changes made as a result of the comments are detailed 
below. 

Proposed changes to the consultation version of the Appraisal Document 

19. The draft appraisal document will be updated to reflect the outcome of the public 
consultation. Specifically, Section 1 will be updated with the dates of consultation and 
outcome of adoption and more up-to-date photographs will replace older ones to reflect 
recent developments. 

20. In this and several other conservation area appraisal consultations we have had 
feedback concerning the accessibility and ease of use of some of the interactive 
features of the consultation draft appraisals, such as the mapping. In light of this, we 
have simplified these elements across all of our appraisal work, including the Drayton 
conservation area appraisal. No content will be lost as a result of these changes. 

Page 8



 
 

21. There are no other major changes anticipated to the document. 

Options 

22. There are three options for Cabinet: 

1) To find that the Drayton Conservation Area as proposed to be extended is of 
special architectural and historic interest and designate the whole area as a 
conservation area and adopt the accompanying appraisal. 

2) To find that the Drayton Conservation Area as proposed to be extended is not of 
special architectural and historic interest and not to extend the designated area, 
leaving the existing boundary as the designated conservation area. 

3) To find that there is an area of special architectural and historic interest that 
extends beyond the existing boundary but that it should be different to that 
proposed. Having identified and justified the difference to designate that area the 
conservation area.  

23. Based upon officers’ assessment of Drayton as presented in the Conservation Area 
Appraisal and the responses received during public consultation, it is recommended 
that the proposed extension to the boundary is adopted and the whole area is 
designated Drayton Conservation Area together with adopting the accompanying 
Appraisal, which is in line with Option (1) above and the recommendations made at the 
beginning of this report.  

Climate and ecological impact implications 

24. There are no anticipated negative climate or ecological implications as a result of the 
proposed boundary revision or appraisal document.  

25. The management plan section of the document encourages high quality and energy 
efficient designs to combat climate change for all proposed development within the 
conservation area.  

26. Conservation Area designation also specifically increases protection of trees over a 
certain size. 

27. The appraisal document also notes that: “The Green offers an opportunity for 
enhancement through the re-engineering of the road junction giving greater priority to 
pedestrians, rationalising car parking and landscaping to create a greater sense of a 
public open space.”   

Financial Implications 

28. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the council’s overarching financial position. For Vale, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to full Council in February 
2023 showed that the council was able to set a balanced budget for 2023/24, but that 
there is expected to be a budget gap in future years.  However, there is great 
uncertainty over this caused by a lack of clarity from government.  

 

Page 9



 
 

29. The future funding gap is predicted to increase to over £7.8 million by 2027/28, based 
on current cautious officer estimates of future funding levels.  Whilst it is anticipated 
that overall funding for the council will remain relatively unchanged in 2024/25, the lack 
of certainty on future local government funding from 2025/26 onwards means the level 
of funding, and the resulting estimated funding gap, could be significantly different from 
current officer estimates in either a positive or negative way.  Every financial decision, 
particularly those involving medium-term funding commitments (i.e. those beyond 
2024/25), needs to be cognisant of the potential for significant funding gaps in future 
years. 
 

30. The process of designating a conservation area entails a small external cost to 
advertise the designation of a new boundary to meet the statutory notification 
requirements as described in the legal implications section below.  

31. Dwellings within the proposed extension once designated would be required to apply 
for planning permission for certain works that no longer benefit from permitted 
development rights. In the case of these proposed changes this affects at least 50 
properties.  

32. There will be some increased work to the council arising from the processing of those 
applications but some of the cost of processing these applications would be recovered 
from the planning fee. Additionally, there may be a small increase in overall workload 
for the service that might not be recovered because some cases will be more complex 
than average. However, having regard to the number of additional properties that the 
extension would cover, this impact is likely to be very modest relative to annual 
workloads. 

33. The modest costs associated with the above points will be met from existing Planning 
budgets. 

Legal Implications 

34. The Appraisal meets the Council’s obligations required by the Planning (Listed Building 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. Under Sections 69 and 71 of the Act, the Council 
should review conservation area boundaries from time-to-time and formulate and 
publish proposals for the preservation and enhancement of any parts of their area 
which are conservation areas. This Appraisal for Drayton forms part of the Council’s 
rolling programme of providing conservation area appraisals for all its designated 
conservation areas. 

35. The principal legal effect of the designation of an area as a conservation area is control 
over demolition of buildings (including structures classed as buildings in planning 
legislation) and control over works to trees. In determining applications, the council also 
has a duty under the Planning Acts to have regard to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the area and there are less generous 
permitted development rights, under the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015. 

36. The Act requires that the designation of a new conservation area or variation to it be 
advertised in the London Gazette, a local newspaper and registered as a local land 
charge. The Secretary of State (DCMS) and Historic England will also be notified. 

Page 10



 
 

Risks 

37. No strategic or operational risks associated with the matters covered in this report have 
been identified 

Other implications 

38. An Equality Impact Assessment is not required for this Conservation Area Appraisal 
document. The document is a supplementary guide to existing planning policy and 
statutory designation with no negative impact on associated policies, service users or 
employees. The document has been produced to be as accessible as possible. 

Conclusion 

39. Having regard to the evidence collected and presented in the Drayton Conservation 
Area Appraisal and to the responses received during consultation, it is recommended 
that the Drayton Conservation Area boundary is amended as proposed. It is also 
recommended that the Conservation Area Appraisal document is adopted for 
development management purposes in line with the recommendations made at the 
beginning of this report.  

 
 

Background Papers 

 Appendix 1: Drayton Conservation Area Proposed Boundary Map 

 Appendix 2: Consultation Report 

 

  

Page 11



 
 

Appendix 1: Drayton Conservation Area Proposed Boundary Map

 

Page 12



 
 

Appendix 2: Consultation Report 

Page 13



1 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

 
 

 

Review of the Drayton 
Conservation Area consultation 

CONSULTATION SUMMARY REPORT 

A review of the feedback received to the Drayton Conservation Area 
consultation. 

 

MAY 2023 
 

 
 
If you require this report in an alternative format (for example large print, Braille, audio, 
email, Easy Read and alternative languages) please email 
haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk or call 01235 422425. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 14

mailto:haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk


2 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

CONTENTS 
 

SUMMARY 3 

HOW WE WILL USE THE RESULTS 3 

BACKGROUND TO THE ENGAGMENT 4 

ENGAGEMENT METHODOLOGY 5 

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DATA 6 

SURVEY 15 

COMMUNICATION 19 

APPENDIX – SUPPORTING MAP 21 

FURTHER INFORMATION 22 
 

Note: When stating percentages in the analysis, we are referring to the percentage of 
respondents that answered the specific question, rather than the total number of responses to 
the overall survey. Response percentages may not add up to 100% due to rounding up over .5 
and rounding down under .5. Words that appear in italics are quotes taken from comments 
received. 

Page 15



3 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

SUMMARY 
Vale of White Horse District Council invited residents to give their views on the Drayton 
Conservation Area Appraisal document that details proposed changes to the conservation 
area boundary in the following places (from section 7 of the appraisal document): 

 
Proposed additions to the conservation area: 
 
• Inclusion to add the historic core of Sutton Wick and Millennium Green, to the north. 
• Inclusion to add an area east of Church Lane. 
• Inclusion to add a small area west of Abingdon Road, across from High Street. 

 
In total, 14 responses were received during the public consultation period. This is made up of 
10 responses via the online survey and 4 responses via email. 

 
The majority of respondents (11) were from Individuals / members of the public.  3 
respondents were representing a business / organisation. 
 
Overall, there was a general support for the document and proposed conservation area 
boundary extensions. Drayton has seen incremental change over the past decade which 
respondents are keen to manage with the aid of this new appraisal. Some responses include 
updates and detail which will help to ensure an adopted appraisal will be as current as 
possible.  

 
Detailed comments on how the Conservation Team have responded to all the comments 
received can be found in this qualitative data section of this report. 

 
HOW WE WILL USE THE RESULTS 
The Drayton Conservation Area Appraisal is currently undergoing review following the close 
of public consultation. Once a final draft is produced using the consultation feedback, it will 
be presented by a Cabinet member at a Cabinet committee meeting to be formally adopted 
as a supplementary planning document. Once adopted, the appraisal can be used to inform 
planning decisions and will be available to view on our conservation areas webpage. 

Page 16

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/building-conservation-and-design/conservation-areas/designated-conservation-areas-character-appraisals-management-plans-and-maps/


4 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

BACKGROUND TO THE ENGAGMENT 
Purpose of the Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review 

  
What are conservation areas? 
Areas of “special architectural or historic interest, the character or appearance of which it is 
desirable to preserve or enhance” – in other words, they exist to protect the features and the 
characteristics that make a historic place unique and distinctive.  

 
Local Authorities have a statutory duty to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character and appearance of the conservation area. In addition to statutory 
controls, both National Policy and the Local Authority policies in the Local Plan help preserve 
the special character and appearance of conservation areas and their setting where it 
contributes to its significance.  

 
What is the purpose of a conservation area appraisal?  
• Identify special architectural or historic interest and the changing needs of the conservation 
area;  
• Define or redefine the conservation area boundaries;  
• Increase public awareness and involvement in the preservation and enhancement of the area;  
• Provide a framework for informed planning decisions;  
• Guide controlled and positive management of change within the conservation area to minimise 
harm and encourage high quality, contextually responsive design.  

 
 

Summary of the Appraisal Document and alterations to the Proposed 
Boundary 

 
This document has been commissioned and produced by Drayton Parish Council 
following on from work undertaken as part of their Neighbourhood Plan. The 
conservation and design team have reviewed draft versions of the document and 
advised on changes necessary to ensure the content is appropriate and compliant with 
current good practice for the production of appraisal and management plans as well as 
being consistent with our in-house documents. 

 
The document provides a summary of the history of Drayton and its development, an 
assessment of its historic and architectural interest, a gazetteer of local interest buildings (non-
listed structures) and illustrative maps showing various details of spatial and character analysis. 

 
During a review of the existing Conservation Area boundary, the Parish Council have 
identified areas that are of sufficient interest and significance to be considered for 
inclusion within the designated boundary. The Conservation Team have also reviewed the 
proposed areas for inclusion and agreed with the Parish Council that these areas 
meet the tests to be included in the designated area and support the proposed revisions to the 
existing boundary. 
 
The revisions include: 
• Inclusion to add the historic core of Sutton Wick and Millennium Green, to the north. 
• Inclusion to add an area east of Church Lane. 
• Inclusion to add a small area west of Abingdon Road, across from High Street. 

Page 17



5 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

ENGAGEMENT METHODOLOGY 
How we undertook the consultation. 

The consultation ran from the Wednesday 18 January until 11.59pm Wednesday 
15 February 2023. 
Letters were issued to residents of Drayton that may be impacted by the 
proposed changes to the conservation area boundary. The council’s 
consultation database was also contacted and filtered for consultees that live 
within Drayton and may have an interest in the consultation. 

An online survey was created to gather feedback on the Drayton Conservation 
Area Appraisal document and the proposed changes to the conservation area 
boundary. The survey asked respondents to provide their comments on the 
appraisal document. A copy of the survey and comments received are available 
to view in this report. 

Paper copies of the consultation materials were made available in Drayton 
Village Hall and Abingdon Library. Posters were also put on display around the 
town to help promote the consultation. 

 

A link to the online survey was made available on the council’s webpages. 
 
 

Reporting methodology 

A total of 14 completed responses were received. This is made up of 10 responses received 
via the online survey and 4 responses via email which were manually added to the results. 

The full results to the consultation are included in this report, alongside an officer response. 

Any personal information supplied to us within the comments that could identify anyone has 
been redacted and will not be shared or published in the report. Further information on data 
protection is available in our planning consultations privacy policy. 

   

Page 18

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-council/get-in-touch/consultations/


6 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DATA 
A copy of the quantitative and qualitative data is provided below. 

1. Are you responding as: 

 

 

Most respondents (11) were received from individuals / members of the public. The remaining 
respondents (3) were on behalf of a business/organisation. 

 
2. Please provide the name of the business / organisation, council or body you are 

representing: 
 

• Milton Parish Council 
• Self 
• Natural England  
• Historic England 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

79%
(11 respondents)

21%
(3 respondents) 

an individual / member of the public

a business / organisation

Page 19



7 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

3. What is your connection to Drayton? Please tick all that apply. 
 

 

Other (please specify): 

• Parish Councillor 

A total of 14 respondents answered this question. A total of 8 respondents said they live 
in Drayton, followed by 7 respondents who said they have an interest in the area and 2 
respondents who said they live outside Drayton. The remaining respondents (3) said they 
work in Drayton (1), regularly visit (1) and the remaining respondent selected ‘other’. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

57%
(8 respondents)

7%
(1 respondent)

14%
( 2 respondents)

7% 
(1 respondent)

50% 
(7 respondents)

7%  
(1 respondent)

I live here I work here I live outside
Drayton

I regularly visit
Drayton

I have an interest
in the area

Other (please
specify):

Please note, respondents 
could tick more than one 
option

Page 20



8 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

4. Please provide your comments on the appraisal document below. 
 

ID Comment Officer response 

208821002 The lines on map mean nothing without an adequate 
understanding by officers, members and public of the 
requirement to consider the desirability to preserve 
or enhance the character or appearance of the area. 
In the recent past the LPA and PC supported the 
development of Manor Farm in the very heart of the 
conservation area reflecting a total disregard of the 
legal duty attached to designation. The concept of 
'precedent' does not have a strict legal application in 
development management or control but there is a 
legitimate expectation that LPAs will be consistent in 
its decision-making. The LPA was warned at the time 
that the Manor Farm development was permitted. In 
these circumstances I would recommend the 
removal of the existing conservation area 
designation rather than its extension.  The additional 
burden placed on properties within conservation 
areas through the limitations placed on permitted 
development rights would be unjustified. The eastern 
frontage to Church Lane does not have sufficient 
architectural or historic interest. Sutton Wick has 
coped without any special designation. 

Noted with thanks. 
Allocation in the Neighborhood 
Plan was subject to its own public 
consultation. It is hoped that the 
addition of this document can 
hold any future development 
proposals that may affect the 
conservation area to a higher 
standard to ensure not only does 
it better reveal significance as per 
policy tests but also protects and 
enhances local distinctiveness. 
It is considered, as outlined in 
Section 7, that Church Lane and 
Sutton Wick do meet the tests for 
inclusion within the designated 
area. As no new evidence has 
been provided against this, the 
areas are still proposed for 
inclusion. 

209009305 Extending the conservation area is a good thing, 
however it is crucially important that no part of the 
conversation area should be included in the 
neighbourhood plan of the future. The current 
conservation area has been compromised by 
development on Manor farm and this should not be 
allowed to happen again. I would like to see far more 
tree planting on the edges of the Manor farm 
development. I would also like attention to be given 
to traffic calming in Henleys and Church lanes. This 
is a very historic part of the village which is being 
negatively affected by the lanes being used as 
speeding rat runs. We really need to give attention to 
this so that the village can enjoy what we already 
have without being affected by speeding traffic. In my 
view more consideration should be given to what 
needs to be done to preserve what we already have 
in addition extending the CA 

Noted with thanks.  
Allocation in the Neighborhood 
Plan was subject to its own public 
consultation. It is hoped that the 
addition of this document can 
hold any future development 
proposals that may affect the 
conservation area to a higher 
standard to ensure not only does 
it better reveal significance as per 
policy tests but also protects and 
enhances local distinctiveness.  

209050426 I fully support the proposal to include my property, in 
the new conservation area. 

Noted with thanks 

Page 21



9 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

 Our property is part of the proposed addition to the 
conservation area, and we agree that it is a sensible 
& valuable move to add the areas considered - we 
thank the team who drew up the plan for their 
thoughtful analysis of the character of the village. 
 
It would be useful to have more information on what 
is expected of homeowners & residents who live in 
the conservation area - we are not a listed building, 
so it is unclear exactly what the conservation area 
would be imposing in the case of future requirements 
for upkeep & changes to our property. However we 
appreciate that this is something that is likely to take 
place after the consultation is complete. 
 
We would also encourage additional tree protection 
orders to be placed on the row of trees going out of 
the village to the south along the B4017/Steventon 
Road; they have been granted for the houses 
towards the far end of the village, but there doesn't 
seem to be anything for the stretch between Mott 
Cottages and Number 36. We feel the mature tree 
avenue is a feature of the village as you head in from 
the Didcot side, and would like to see this ensured. 
 
And a rationalisation of traffic signs on the High 
Street would certainly be beneficial! 

Noted with thanks.  
Details on the impact of going 
into the conservation area are all 
outlined in Section 1 of the draft 
document that formed part of the 
consultation.  

210326983 The Council RESOLVED to support Drayton’s Parish 
Council’s position regarding the Conservation Area 

Noted with thanks 

210508371 I wholeheartedly welcome this proposal to increase 
that part of Drayton designated as a conservation 
area.  In particular, the inclusion of the Millennium 
Green and some of Sutton Wick will be an excellent 
step forward.   I think it is very valuable to make 
these changes before the Drayton Neighbourhood 
Plan is revised, I assume around 2030. 

Noted with thanks 

211011281 I do not support the revision of the Drayton 
Conservation Area (DCA)to include the East side of 
Church Lane and the land and paddocks beyond. 
Our experience with land and developments in the 
existing DCA has shown that its existence has 
afforded little or no protection, where a green space 
at the heart of the village was given consent for a 
dozen or so houses which then expanded to 58, 
turning a rural space into an urban one. Worse, the 
developer then removed established tree cover and 
historic hedgerows without consent and VWHDC 
Planners took no action. With such a lack of 
protection for larger issues, we would not welcome 
interference from Planners and Conservation 
Officers on smaller matters such as trees, windows, 
and permitted development. Furthermore the 
buildings on this side of Church Lane do not show 
"special architectural or historic interest", as defined 
by you, with the exception of those that are listed. 

As above, the allocation of the 
Manor Farm site during the 
Neighborhood Plan process went 
through it's own consultation. The 
allocation of land both within and 
outside of designated 
conservation areas is always 
controversial and it is expected 
that development in designated 
areas should be tested against all 
relevant policies as well as 
demonstrating that it better 
reveals the special interest of a 
place. For the reasons given in 
the document at Section 7 it is 
considered that Church Lane and 
the fields surrounding it do meet 
the tests to warrant inclusion. 
Introductory details of how this 

Page 22



10 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

would affect permitted 
development rights is also 
outlined in the document at 
Section 1 and links to the website 
provided.  

211034501 I could not agree more with the changes and hope 
that they will be approved. 

Noted with thanks 

211054421 The Sitting Room is included in this document but it 
has already been demolished and a new building is 
being constructed. Has this been done legally begs 
the question.   

Noted - this should have been 
updated as the draft document 
pre-dates the permissions there.  

211386806 Natural England does not have any specific 
comments on this draft Conservation Area Appraisal. 

Noted with thanks 

211387121 I am acting on behalf on the  who own 
the hardware shop plus land at 5 The Green, 
Drayton which is included in the proposed extension 
to the western limits of the area. 
The shop is leased to  and we have 
recently agreed with  that we will remove the 
garden area at the rear of the shop from the lease. 
This land is indicated on a copy of your map 
attached. This legal matter is with our solicitors at the 
present time and is in process of transfer. 
I think that you thought it would make sense to 
reposition the boundary for the new Conservation 
Area to line up with the boundaries of the properties 
each side of the shop as shown on the plan. We feel 
that this would rationalise the boundary and is 
something that we would support. 

Noted with thanks 

211387785 Dear Madam/ Sir, 
 
Thank you for consulting Historic England on the 
draft conservation area appraisal for Drayton. 
 
The document is comprehensive yet accessible, and 
importantly readily useable by both the public and 
professionals. We support the additions to the 
conservation area. 
 
I did note a probably error on page 43, Casa Mia’s 
description appears incorrect (a replica of 33 
Henleys Lane above), and will need amending. 

Noted with thanks 

Page 23



11 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

 I have no objection to the proposed changes to the CA 
boundary as set out in the 2022 Consultation Draft, 
however, I do have a few comments which I hope are 
constructive: 
  
Page 3 ref NPPF 2012 needs amending to 2021 
  
10. Bibliography – spelt incorrectly, too many “i’s 
Out of date design guide referred to should be 2022. 
NPPF 2018 should be 2022. 
  
P44 updated photographs attached and below to 
replace the photos for Willow Lodge and ancillary 
building. Lots of the photos are very out of date and 
would benefit from review. 
  
P46 – non designated heritage asset – The sitting 
room has been demolished!! 
I am surprised that 13 High Street is not listed as a non 
designated heritage asset. I would think it is of more 
heritage value than our property. 
P15 photo pf standpipe over the text. 
  
Section 8 consultation has not been updated.  
  
I think you said the document was updated in 2016 but 
not consulted upon. It appears there has been a little 
more recent updating but not a comprehensive review.. 
7 years is a long time since the update and I think the 
document should be more comprehensively reviewed.  

Noted with thanks 
The document was first compiled 
a number of years ago and there 
has been incremental change 
since then that is not reflected in 
the draft. We did review it and 
thought we had caught most of 
the changes but the function of 
the public consultation was to 
also get local eyes on the 
document who are more familiar 
with where these changes have 
taken place.  
It is hoped that the changes 
needed do not fundamentally 
change the function or spirit of 
the document. 

 If the document is to be adopted as drafted then the 
reason why the additional areas are to be included in 
the conservation area should be included in the 
character areas of conservation area in section 6. 
Section 2 says the analysis has included the 
proposed extension to the CA. I don’t think this is 
required for the reason below, but included as you 
would expect in a Conservation Area Appraisal. 3.2 
refers to the old boundary being tightly drawn. The 
boundary changes described at section 7 will not be 
relevant when adopted nor will the new and old CA 
boundary. It appears to me that the changes are 
better described in an accompanying document not 
in the actual CAA. It would be better if the CA 
appraisal is presented as the new replacement 
document for adoption.   
  
Area 2 page 21, refers to only the west side of 
Church Lane being in the CA. This should be written 
as though it is in the CA if this is to be the adopted 
plan. 
  
I hope the above comments are helpful. 

We include all the areas 
proposed for inclusion to the 
same degree of detail as those 
already within the boundary 
because we are consulting on a 
draft making it clear what all the 
proposed changes are in order 
for people to comment. The aim 
is to then adopt a single 
document for the whole area; two 
documents would be more 
confusing and less user friendly.  
The final document is then 
updated to reflect that the area 
was amended and adopted at a 
specific cabinet date so that the 
changes made are clear. 
Ultimately the final adopted 
document should be a single 
source of reference for 
development in the area. 

 
 
 

Page 24



12 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

5. You can upload any supporting documents using the button below. 
1 respondent attached a map to support their comments which can be found in the Appendix. 
 
6. Which of the following describes how you identify yourself? 

 
Most respondents identify as a female (7) and 3 respondents identify as a male. 

7. How old are you? 

 
There were 3 responses from those in the 65 to 74 age bracket; followed by 2 in the 75+ age 
bracket.  

The remaining 5 respondents were aged between 25 to 34 (1), 35 to 44 (1), 45 to 54 (1), 55 to 64 
(1) and one respondent selected ‘prefer not to say.’  

30% 
(3 respondents)

70% 
(7 respondents)

Male

Female

0%
(0 respondents)

10% 
(1 respondent)

10% 
(1 respondent)

10% 
(1 respondent)

10%
(1 respondent)

30% 
(3 respondents)

20% 
(2 respondents) 

10% 
(1 respondent)

16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75+ Prefer not
to say

Page 25



13 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

8. What is your ethnic group? 

 
 

Most respondent (8) are from a ‘White British - English, Welsh, Scottish and Northern Irish’ ethnic 
group. The remaining respondents (2) selected the ‘prefer not to say’ option.  

9.  Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or disability which 
has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or more? 

 
All of the respondents that answered this question (10), said their day-to-day activities are not 
limited because of a health problem or disability. 4 respondents skipped this question.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

20% 
(2 respondents)

80%
(8 respondents)

Prefer not to say

English, Welsh, Scottish,
Northern Irish, British

100%
(10 respondents) No

Page 26



14 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

10. How did you hear about the review of the Drayton Conservation Area appraisal? 
 

 

A total of 4 respondents heard about the Drayton Conservation Area consultation via 
email. The remaining respondents (8) heard about the consultation via their district 
council (3), Facebook (2), letter (2) and via their parish council (1). 

40% 
(4 respondents)

0%

20% 
(2 respondents)

0% 0%

10% 
(1 respondent)

30% 
(3 respondents)

0% 0%

20% 
(2 respondents)

0% 0%

Please note, respondents could 
tick more than one option

Page 27



15 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

SURVEY 
A copy of the online survey is provided below.  

Review of the Drayton Conservation Area 
  
We are carrying out a review of the conservation area in Drayton. 
 
As part of the review process, we are now inviting comments on the Drayton Conservation 
Area Appraisal document. This includes proposed changes to the conservation area 
boundary in the following places (from section 7 of the appraisal document): 
 
• Inclusion to add the historic core of Sutton Wick and Millennium Green, to the north  
• Inclusion to add an area east of Church Lane 
• Inclusion to add a small area west of Abingdon Road, across from High Street 

 
In some areas, the revision is intended to update any issues caused by past mapping and 
changes to property boundaries over time. In other areas, the boundary could be extended 
to areas that add to the architectural and historic interest of the area and are therefore 
worthy of including within the designated boundary.  
 
You will have the opportunity to comment on the above proposed changes and Drayton 
Conservation Area Appraisal document in this survey. 
 
You can find out more information about the review and download the appraisal document 
on our website.  
 
We are inviting your comments on the proposed changes during a four week consultation 
period which runs from Wednesday 18 January until 11.59pm Wednesday 15 February, 
2023. 
 

 
Further Information  
 
Personal details 
If you are responding as an individual, you are not required to provide your name or 
personal details. If you are responding on behalf of a business, organisation, or other we 
will ask for its name and this information may be published. Any personal information you 
provide to the council within your comments that could identify you will not be 
published. Further information on data protection is available on in our privacy statement. 
 
Queries? 
If you have any questions on the draft appraisal, survey or require it in an alternative format 
(for example large print, Braille, audio, email, Easy Read and alternative languages) please 
contact our Conservation team at conservationconsults@southandvale.gov.uk or call 01235 
422600.  
 

Page 28

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/draytonconservation
https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/T06KIHEU/21_10_2022_privacy_policy__planning_consultations.pdf
mailto:conservationconsults@southandvale.gov.uk
tel:01235%20422600
tel:01235%20422600


16 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

What happens next 
After the consultation period ends, we will consider your comments and make appropriate 
changes to the draft document and boundary revision before we proceed to adopt it via the 
council’s cabinet process. Once adopted, we will publish the cabinet report, new 
Conservation Area Appraisal document and adopted revised boundary on our website. 
 
 
A bit about you  

1. Are you responding as: * 
 

   an individual / member of the public 

   a business / organisation 

   Other (please specify): 
  

 

2. Please provide the name of the business / organisation, council or body you are 
representing:  
 
  

3. What is your connection to Drayton? Please tick all that apply.  
 

   I live here 

   I work here 

   I live outside Drayton 

   I regularly visit Drayton 

   I have an interest in the area 

   Other (please specify): 
  

 

Your comments  

4. Please provide your comments on the appraisal document below. 
 
You can view the Drayton document on our website. If you are particularly concerned with 
the proposed boundary revision, you can find more detail on these in section 7 of the 
appraisal. 
 
If you would like to see this document amended or improved in any way, it would be helpful 
if you could please explain what changes you are seeking. * 
 
   
  
 

Page 29

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/building-conservation-and-design/conservation-areas/designated-conservation-areas-character-appraisals-management-plans-and-maps/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/draytonconservation


17 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

5. You can upload any supporting documents using the button below.  
 
Choose File  
 
Our commitment to equal access for all  
 
We are committed to making sure that residents have equal access to all council 
services. Please help us to keep track of how successfully we are achieving this by ticking 
the appropriate boxes below. 
 
All questions are optional. All information is confidential and will only be used to help us 
monitor whether views differ across the community.  
 
6. Which of the following describes how you identify yourself?  
 

   Male 

   Female 

   Neither of the above (specify below if you would like to) 

   Prefer not to say 

   I identify as: 
  

 

 
7. How old are you? 

   16-24  65-74 

   25-34  75+ 

   35-44  Prefer not to say 

   45-54 

   55-64 

8. What is your ethnic group?   
 

   Prefer not to say 

White 

   English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern Irish, British 

   Irish 

   Gypsy or Irish Traveller 

   Any other white background 

Asian or Asian British 

   Indian 

   Pakistani 

Page 30



18 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

   Bangladeshi 

   Chinese 

   Any other Asian background 
 
Black or Black British 

   Caribbean 

   African 

   Any other black background 

Mixed or Multiple Ethnic Groups 

   White and Black Caribbean 

   White and Black African 

   White and Asian 

   Any other mixed background 

Other Ethnic Group 

   Arab 

   Other (please specify): 
  

 

 
9. Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or disability 
which has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or more?  
 

   Yes 

   No 

   Prefer not to say 
 
If yes, please specify:   

10. How did you hear about the review of the Drayton Conservation Area appraisal?  
 

    Email  District Council 

   Instagram  Poster 

   Facebook  Word of mouth 

   Our website  Letter 

   Twitter  Newsletter 

   Parish Council  Other (please specify): 
 
 

Page 31



 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

19 
 

COMMUNICATION 
A copy of the email notification issued to the council’s consultation database is 
provided below. 
 
Subject: Your comments are invited on the Review of Drayton Conservation Area 
 
Dear [NAME] 
 
We are emailing to invite you to have your say on proposed changes to the conservation 
area in Drayton as this may be of interest to you. 
 
What is a conservation area? 
The village’s conservation area is the designated area of special architectural or historic 
interest which exists to protect the features and characteristics that make Drayton a historic, 
unique and distinctive place. 
 
Why are we reviewing the conservation area? 
It is a requirement that all councils coordinate and publish appraisals for the preservation 
and enhancement of conservation areas and that these proposals are reviewed from time 
to time. 
 
This is the first comprehensive Conservation Area Appraisal document that has been 
produced for Drayton. The document has been authored by a third party consultant 
appointed by Drayton Parish Council and published by the Vale of White Horse 
Conservation and Design Team. We have a statutory duty to consult the public on this new 
document before it is adopted. 
 
Have your say as part of our review process 
As part of the review process, we are now inviting comments on the Drayton Conservation 
Area Appraisal document. 
 
You can download the appraisal and find out more information about the review on our 
website. https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/draytonconservation 
 
How to comment 
We are inviting your comments on the Drayton Conservation Area Appraisal document 
during a four-week consultation period which runs from Wednesday 18 January until 
11.59pm Wednesday 15 February. 
 
The quickest and easiest way to comment is to use our online comment form. 
 
Note that this is a unique link just for you and is tied to your email address. If you would like 
to forward this message to anybody else, please refer them to the public link to the survey. 
 
 
What happens next 
After the consultation period ends, we will consider your comments and make appropriate 
changes to the draft document and boundary revision before we proceed to adopt it via the 
council’s cabinet process. Once adopted, we will publish the cabinet report, new 

Page 32

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/draytonconservation
https://app.smartsurvey.co.uk/survey/collect/mail/view/id/%5bSURVEYLINK%5d
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/DraytonCAA_CommentForm/


 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

20 
 

conservation area appraisal document and adopted revised boundary on our website. 
 
We look forward to hearing your views. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Boris van der Ree 
Conservation Enquiry Officer 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
  

 
If you need support to access the consultation materials, have any queries about the survey 
form or require it in an alternative format (for example: large print, Braille, audio, email, 
Easy Read or alternative languages) please email 
conservationconsults@southandvale.gov.uk or call 01235 422600. 
 
Opt-out: If you do not wish to receive further emails from us like this, please click here, and 
you will be removed from our consultation mailing list. Please note, we may still need to 
contact you for certain consultations if we have a legal obligation to do so. 
 
Data protection: Please refer to our planning consultations privacy statement regarding 
how your personal data is used for this consultation, available on the consultation page 
of our website. If you would like to know more about the council’s data protection 
registration or to find out about your personal data, please visit our website. 
 

Page 33

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/building-conservation-and-design/conservation-areas/designated-conservation-areas-character-appraisals-management-plans-and-maps/
http://conservationconsults@southandvale.gov.uk/
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/Remove/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/get-in-touch/consultations/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/privacy/data-protection/


21 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

APPENDIX – SUPPORTING MAP 
 
The map below was submitted to support response ID: 21138712.  

 

Page 34



22 
Review of the Drayton Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION 
For information about the consultation or the results presented in this report, please 
contact: 

 
Consultation and Community Engagement Team 
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
01235 422 425 
haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk 

 

To enquire about the council’s work on the Drayton Conservation Area 
consultation, please contact: 

 
Conservation Area Team 
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
01235 422 600 
conservationconsults@southandvale.gov.uk 

 
 

END. 

Page 35

mailto:haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:conservationconsults@southandvale.gov.uk


 
 

Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Planning 

Author: Samantha Allen 

Telephone: 07717 274692 

E-mail: samantha.allen@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: Stanford Ward 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Andy Foulsham 

E-mail: andy.foulsham@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 29 September 2023 

 

 

Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area 

Appraisal and Boundary Review Adoption 

Recommendations 

(a) That the Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area boundary is adopted as per the 
proposed revisions shown at Appendix 1. 

(b) That the Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan as 
amended following public consultation is adopted as a Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) as part of the Development Plan evidence and is a material planning 
consideration.  

(c) To delegate to the Head of Planning in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member 
to make minor changes, typographical corrections or non-material amendments to the 
Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan document prior 
to formal publication and statutory notification requirements.  

 

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of the representations received 
during the public consultation on the draft Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area 
Appraisal and Boundary Review and to detail the changes that have been made to the 
document as a result in order to seek formal adoption of the boundary and associated 
document.  

Corporate Objectives  

2. The Appraisal accords with 2020-2024 Corporate Objectives 1 (Providing the homes 
people need) and 3 (Building healthy communities). The document also forms part of 

Page 36

Agenda Item 8

mailto:samantha.allen@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andy.foulsham@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 
 

the development plan evidence base supporting the preservation and enhancement of 
the district’s historic environment.  

Background 

Purpose of the Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review 

3. Under Sections 69 & 71 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 local authorities have a duty to designate conservation areas and from time to 
time to review the boundaries.  Such areas are defined as ‘areas of special 
architectural or historic interest, the character or appearance of which it is desirable to 
preserve or enhance’. The Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area Appraisal 
Document is the mechanism by which the local authority defines the special interest of 
the area, and the boundary was reviewed during the writing of the document. 

4. Under Section 71 of the above act, the Council has a responsibility to formulate and 
produce proposals for the preservation and enhancement of its conservation areas. 
This appraisal for Stanford-in-the-Vale, authored by the Conservation Team, forms part 
of our rolling programme of providing or supporting local groups with conservation area 
appraisals for all the Vale of White Horse designated conservation areas. 

5. Internal consultation was undertaken in September 2022 and feedback and responses 
received fed into the draft document that was issued for public consultation.  

6. A five-week period of public consultation commenced on Wednesday 1 February 2023, 
closing on Wednesday 8 March 2023. Hard copies of the document were provided at 
the Stanford Coffee House and Faringdon Library. We were assisted with the 
advertising of the consultation by the parish clerk. 

7. Under Section 71 of the above act, we have exercised our duty to formulate and 
produce proposals for the preservation and enhancement of the conservation area. 
The appraisal document once adopted will form part of the evidence base for the 
Development Plan. It should be used in the development management process to 
manage positive change within the designated conservation area or its setting to 
minimise harm and encourage preservation or enhancement. 

Statement of Consultation Methodology 

8. This SPD has been prepared and consulted upon in accordance with the Council’s 
Statement of Community Involvement (Dec 2022).  

9. Appended to this statement is a full Consultation Report (Appendix 2) which outlines 
the methodology for consultation in accordance with the requirements set out in the 
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (Regulation 
13), the full results and how these were reviewed.  

10. The Consultation Report summarises how relevant issues have been addressed and 
supports the proposed adoption of the Conservation Area Appraisal and Management 
Plan for Stanford as an SPD in accordance with Regulation 14 of the above regulations 

 

 

Page 37



 
 

Summary of the Appraisal Document and alterations to the Proposed Boundary 

11. This document was produced and reviewed by the Conservation Team in tandem with 
the development of a new template to be used for all future appraisals. Stanford-in the-
Vale was chosen as a result of a weighting exercise in which un-appraised 
conservation areas within Vale of White Horse were prioritised by development 
pressures. The Conservation Team, in consultation with the cabinet member, agreed 
that these priority areas would benefit the most from a conservation area appraisal. 

12. The document provides a summary of the history of Stanford-in-the-Vale and its 
development, an assessment of its historic and architectural interest, a gazetteer of 
local interest buildings (non-listed structures) and illustrative maps showing various 
details of spatial and character analysis. 

13. During a review of the existing Conservation Area boundary, the Conservation Team 
has identified areas that are of sufficient interest and significance to be considered for 
inclusion within the designated boundary and areas that no longer meet the tests and 
are proposed for removal (see map at Appendix 1). 

Proposed changes to the Designated Boundary 

14. There are several areas where the existing Conservation Area Boundary is proposed 
for revision. The proposals are shown at Appendix 1.  

• Extension to include verges at western end of High Street 

• Extension to include curtilage and dovecote of Cox’s Hall 

• Extension to include 15 High Street 

• Extension to include the former orchard and orchard walls of Orchard House as 
defined by Green Lane. Includes 9 Horsecroft. 

• Extension to include 10, 16-24, 15-27 Horsecroft and their curtilages. 

• Extension to include former orchard adjacent to 1 Upper Green (aka The Old 
House). 

• Correction at Penstone’s Court, formerly Penstone’s Farm 

• Removal of 25,27 High Street 

Summary of consultation responses received  

15. In total, 14 responses were received during the public consultation period. This is made 
up of 10 responses via the online survey and 4 responses via email.  

16. Further detail and the list of responses can be found in Appendix 2, the Stanford-in-the-
Vale Consultation Report produced by the Consultation and Community Engagement 
Team. 

17. Overall, the responses received were generally supportive of the content of the 
document. Summaries of the changes made as a result of the comments are detailed 
below. 

Page 38



 
 

Proposed changes to the consultation version of the Appraisal Document 

18. The draft appraisal document will be updated to reflect the outcome of the public 
consultation. Specifically, Section 1 will be updated with the dates of consultation and 
outcome of adoption. 

19. Several responses were received regarding recently published research (September 
2022) into the archaeology of Stanford along with a number of recommendations for 
updates and corrections. A full summary of the consultation responses and how we 
have actioned them is in Appendix 2.  

20. In this and several other conservation area appraisal consultations we have had 
feedback concerning the accessibility and ease of use of some of the interactive 
features of the consultation draft appraisals, such as the mapping. In light of this, we 
have simplified these elements across all of our appraisal work, including the Stanford-
in-the-Vale conservation area appraisal. No content will be lost as a result of these 
changes. 

21. There are no other major changes anticipated to the document. 

Options 

22. There are three options for Cabinet: 

a) To find that the Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area as proposed to be 
extended is of special architectural and historic interest and designate the whole 
area as a conservation area and adopt the accompanying appraisal. 

b) To find that the Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area as proposed to be 
extended is not of special architectural and historic interest and not to extend the 
designated area, leaving the existing boundary as the designated conservation 
area. 

c) To find that there is an area of special architectural and historic interest that 
extends beyond the existing boundary but that it should be different to that 
proposed. Having identified and justified the difference to designate that area the 
conservation area.  

23. Based upon officers’ assessment of Stanford-in-the-Vale as presented in the 
Conservation Area Appraisal and the responses received during public consultation, it 
is recommended that the proposed extension to the boundary is adopted and the whole 
area is designated Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area together with adopting the 
accompanying Appraisal, which is in line with Option (a) and the recommendations 
made at the beginning of this report.  

Climate and ecological impact implications 

24. There are no anticipated negative climate or ecological implications as a result of the 
proposed boundary revision or appraisal document.  

25. The management plan section of the document encourages high quality and energy 
efficient designs to combat climate change for all proposed development within the 
conservation area.  

Page 39



 
 

26. Conservation Area designation also specifically increases protection of trees over a 
certain size.   

Financial Implications 

27. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the council’s overarching financial position. For Vale, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to full Council in February 
2023 showed that the council was able to set a balanced budget for 2023/24, but that 
there is expected to be a budget gap in future years.  However, there is great 
uncertainty over this caused by a lack of clarity from government.  

 
28. The future funding gap is predicted to increase to over £7.8 million by 2027/28, based 

on current cautious officer estimates of future funding levels.  Whilst it is anticipated 
that overall funding for the council will remain relatively unchanged in 2024/25, the lack 
of certainty on future local government funding from 2025/26 onwards means the level 
of funding, and the resulting estimated funding gap, could be significantly different from 
current officer estimates in either a positive or negative way.  Every financial decision, 
particularly those involving medium-term funding commitments (i.e. those beyond 
2024/25), needs to be cognisant of the potential for significant funding gaps in future 
years. 
 

29. The process of designating a conservation area entails a small external cost to 
advertise the designation of a new boundary to meet the statutory notification 
requirements as described in the legal implications section below.  

30. Dwellings within the proposed extension once designated would be required to apply 
for planning permission for certain works that no longer benefit from permitted 
development rights. In the case of these proposed changes this results in an additional 
13 properties. 

31. There will be some increased work to the council arising from the processing of those 
applications but some of the cost of processing these applications would be recovered 
from the planning fee. Additionally, there may be a small increase in overall workload 
for the service that might not be recovered because some cases will be more complex 
than average. However, having regard to the number of additional properties that the 
extension would cover, this impact is likely to be very modest relative to annual 
workloads. 

32. The modest costs associated with the above points will be met from existing budgets. 

Legal Implications 

21. The Appraisal meets the Council’s obligations required by the Planning (Listed Building 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. Under Sections 69 and 71 of the Act, the Council 
should review conservation area boundaries from time-to-time and formulate and 
publish proposals for the preservation and enhancement of any parts of their area 
which are conservation areas. This Appraisal for Stanford-in-the-Vale forms part of the 
Council’s rolling programme of providing conservation area appraisals for all its 
designated conservation areas. 

22. The principal legal effect of the designation of an area as a conservation area is control 
over demolition of buildings (including structures classed as buildings in planning 

Page 40



 
 

legislation) and control over works to trees. In determining applications, the council also 
has a duty under the Planning Acts to have regard to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the area and there are less generous 
permitted development rights, under the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015. 

23. The Act requires that the designation of a new conservation area or variation to it be 
advertised in the London Gazette, a local newspaper and registered as a local land 
charge. The Secretary of State (DCMS) and Historic England will also be notified. 

Risks 

24. No strategic or operational risks associated with the matters covered in this report have 
been identified. 

Other implications 

25. An Equality Impact Assessment is not required for this Conservation Area Appraisal 
document. The document is a supplementary guide to existing planning policy and 
statutory designation with no negative impact on associated policies, service users or 
employees. The document has been produced to be as accessible as possible. 

Conclusion 

26. Having regard to the evidence collected and presented in the Stanford-in-the-Vale 
Conservation Area Appraisal and to the responses received during consultation, it is 
recommended that the Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area boundary is amended 
as proposed. It is also recommended that the Conservation Area Appraisal document 
is adopted for development management purposes in line with the recommendations 
made at the beginning of this report.  

 
 

Background Papers 

 Appendix 1: Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area Proposed Boundary Map 

 Appendix 2: Consultation Report 

 

  

Page 41



 
 

Appendix 1: Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area Proposed 
Boundary Map 

 
  

Page 42



 
 

Appendix 2: Consultation Report 

Page 43



1 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

 
 

 

Review of the Stanford in the Vale 
Conservation Area consultation 

CONSULTATION SUMMARY REPORT 

A review of the feedback received to the Stanford in the Vale 
Conservation Area consultation. 

 

MAY 2023 

 
 
 

If you require this report in an alternative format (for example large print, Braille, audio, 
email, Easy Read and alternative languages) please email 
haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk or call 01235 422425. 

Page 44

mailto:haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk


2 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

CONTENTS 
 
 

SUMMARY 3 

HOW WE HAVE USED THE RESULTS 3 

BACKGROUND TO THE ENGAGMENT 4 

ENGAGEMENT METHODOLOGY 5 

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DATA 6 

SURVEY 26 

COMMUNICATION 31 

FURTHER INFORMATION 33 
 
 

Note: When stating percentages in the analysis, we are referring to the percentage of 
respondents that answered the specific question, rather than the total number of responses to 
the overall survey. Response percentages may not add up to 100% due to rounding up over .5 
and rounding down under .5. Words that appear in italics are quotes taken from comments 
received. 

Page 45



3 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

SUMMARY 
Vale of White Horse District Council invited residents to give their views on the Stanford in the 
Vale Conservation Area Appraisal document that details proposed changes to the 
conservation area boundary in the following places (from section 8 of the appraisal document): 

 
Proposed additions to the conservation area: 

 
• Extension to include verges at western end of High Street 
• Extension to include curtilage and dovecote of Cox’s Hall 
• Extension to include 15 High Street 
• Extension to include the former orchard and orchard walls of Orchard House as 

defined by Green Lane. Includes 9 Horsecroft. 
• Extension to include 10, 16-24, 15-27 Horsecroft and their curtilages. 
• Extension to include former orchard adjacent to 1 Upper Green (aka The OldHouse). 

 
Proposed removals from the conservation area: 

• Removal of 25,27 High Street 

In total, 14 responses were received during the public consultation period. This is made up of 
10 responses via the online survey and 4 responses via email. 

 
The majority of respondents (9) were from individuals/members of the public. Of the remaining 
5 respondents, 2 were from local organisations and 3 were from national organisations.  
 
There was a general support for the appraisal and boundary revisions. The Parish council 
suggested further extending the boundary east of Horsecroft. A recent PhD thesis about 
Stanford in the Vale was brought to our attention along with comments from a local history 
group which will be used to update areas of the appraisal with latest findings. A number of 
small factual corrections were noted and will be implemented for a final adoption draft.  

 
Detailed comments on how the Conservation Team have responded to all the comments 
received can be found in this qualitative data section of this report. 

 
HOW WE WILL USE THE RESULTS 
The Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area Appraisal is currently undergoing review 
following the close of public consultation. Once a final draft is produced using the 
consultation feedback, it will be presented by a Cabinet member at a Cabinet committee 
meeting to be formally adopted as a supplementary planning document. Once adopted, the 
appraisal can be used to inform planning decisions and will be available to view on our 
conservation areas webpage. 

Page 46

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/building-conservation-and-design/conservation-areas/designated-conservation-areas-character-appraisals-management-plans-and-maps/


4 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

BACKGROUND TO THE ENGAGMENT 
Purpose of the Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review 

 
What are conservation areas? 
Areas of “special architectural or historic interest, the character or appearance of which it is 
desirable to preserve or enhance” – in other words, they exist to protect the features and the 
characteristics that make a historic place unique and distinctive.  

 
Local Authorities have a statutory duty to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character and appearance of the conservation area. In addition to statutory 
controls, both National Policy and the Local Authority policies in the Local Plan help preserve 
the special character and appearance of conservation areas and their setting where it 
contributes to its significance.  

 
What is the purpose of a conservation area appraisal?  
• Identify special architectural or historic interest and the changing needs of the conservation 
area;  
• Define or redefine the conservation area boundaries;  
• Increase public awareness and involvement in the preservation and enhancement of the area;  
• Provide a framework for informed planning decisions;  
• Guide controlled and positive management of change within the conservation area to minimise 
harm and encourage high quality, contextually responsive design.  

 
Summary of the Appraisal Document and alterations to the Proposed 
Boundary 

 
This document was fully produced and reviewed by the Conservation Team in tandem with the 
development of a new template to be used for all future appraisals. Stanford in the Vale was 
chosen as a result of a weighting exercise in which un-appraised conservation areas within Vale 
of White Horse were prioritised by development pressures. The Conservation Team decided 
that these priority areas would benefit the most from a conservation area appraisal. 
 
The document provides a summary of the history of Stanford in the Vale and its development, 
an assessment of its historic and architectural interest, a gazetteer of local interest buildings 
(non-listed structures) and maps showing various details of spatial and character analysis. 
 
During a review of the existing Conservation Area boundary, the Conservation Team identified 
areas that are of sufficient interest and significance to be considered for inclusion within the 
designated boundary and areas that no longer meet the tests and are proposed for removal. 
 
The revisions include: 
• Extension to include verges at western end of High Street 
• Extension to include curtilage and dovecote of Cox’s Hall 
• Extension to include 15 High Street 
• Extension to include the former orchard and orchard walls of Orchard House as defined by 
Green Lane. Includes 9 Horsecroft. 
• Extension to include 10, 16-24, 15-27 Horsecroft and their curtilages. 
• Extension to include former orchard adjacent to 1 Upper Green (aka The Old House). 
• Correction at Penstone’s Court, formerly Penstone’s Farm 
• Removal of 25,27 High Street

Page 47



5 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

ENGAGEMENT METHODOLOGY 
How we undertook the consultation. 

The consultation ran from Wednesday 1 February until 11.59pm Wednesday 8 
March 2023. 

Letters were issued to residents of Stanford in the Vale that may be impacted 
by the proposed changes to the conservation area boundary. The council’s 
consultation database was also contacted and filtered for consultees that live 
within Stanford in the Vale and may have an interest in the consultation. 

An online survey was created to gather feedback on the Stanford in the Vale 
Conservation Area Appraisal document and the proposed changes to the 
conservation area boundary. The survey asked respondents to provide their 
views on the Area Appraisal. A copy of the survey and comments received are 
available to view in this report. 

Paper copies of the consultation materials were made available in the Stanford 
Coffee House and Faringdon Library. Posters were also put on display around 
the town to help promote the consultation. 

 

A link to the online survey was made available on the council’s webpages. 
 
 

Reporting methodology 

A total of 16 completed responses were received. This is made up of 12 responses received 
via the online survey and 4 responses via email which were manually added to the results. 

The full results to the consultation are included in this report, alongside an officer response. 

Any personal information supplied to us within the comments that could identify anyone has 
been redacted and will not be shared or published in the report. Further information on data 
protection is available in our planning consultations privacy policy. 

   

Page 48

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/about-the-council/get-in-touch/consultations/


6 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DATA 
A copy of the quantitative and qualitative data received to the consultation is provided below. 

1. Are you responding as: 

 
Other (please specify): 

• Parish Council 

Most respondents (10) were received from individuals / members of the public, followed by 5 
respondents on behalf of a business / organisation. The remaining respondent selected 
‘other’. 

2. Please provide the name of the business / organisation, or other you are 
representing: 

• Network Rail 
• Stanford in the Vale Archaeological Research Project. Dr David Ashby, Project Director 
• Stanford in the Vale Parish Council 
• also a member of the Local History Society 
• Historic England 
• Natural England 
• Stanford in the Vale Local History Society 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

63% 
(10 respondents)

31% 
(5 respondents)

6% 
(1 respondent)

an individual / member of the public

a business / organisation

Other (please specify):

Page 49



7 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

3. What is your connection to Stanford in the Vale? Please tick all that apply. 
 

 
Other (please specify):  
 

• We are the local Parish Council  
 

A total of 16 respondents answered this question. Most respondents (11) said they live in the 
Stanford in the Vale. This is followed by 7 respondents who said they have an interest in the 
area and 3 respondents who said they work here. The remaining respondents said they live 
outside Stanford in the Vale (2), regularly visit Stanford in the Vale (2) and 1 respondent 
selected ‘other’.

69% 
(11 respondents)

19% 
(3 respondents)

13% 
(2 respondents)

13% 
(2 respondents)

44% 
(7 respondents)

6% 
(1 respondent)

I live here I work here I live outside
Stanford in the

Vale

I regularly visit
Stanford in the

Vale

I have an interest
in the area

Other (please
specify):

Please note, 
respondents could tick 
more than one option

Page 50



8 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

4. Please provide your comments on the appraisal document below. 
 
You can view the Stanford in the Vale Appraisal document on our website. If you are 
particularly concerned with the proposed boundary revision, you can find more detail on these 
in section 8 of the appraisal. 
 
If you would like to see this document amended or improved in any way, it would be helpful if 
you could please explain what changes you are seeking. 
 

ID Comment Officer response 
209853682 Seems reasonable Noted with thanks 
210272691 
 

Supportive of the proposed boundary changes in 
particular: 
 
- Extension of the west end of the conservation area to 
fully include green at the junction of High Street and 
A417. 
- Extension to include garden and curtilage of Cox's Hall 
- Extension to include grounds and orchard of Orchard 
House 
- Extension to include former orchard north of Upper 
Green/Cottage Road adjacent to The Old House. 
 
Note that of the three parcels of land north of the primary 
school building: 
 
- The Millennium Green is administered by the Stanford in 
the Vale Millennium Green Trust of which the trustee is 
the Parish Council 
- The centre field ( in which sheep are pictured grazing) is  
private land (owned by the owners of Ashdown House) 
- The school playing fields are (I think) owned and 
administered by the Diocese of Oxford 
 
None of this land is owned or administered by the Public 
Purposes Charity. 

Noted with thanks 

210283371 
 

As a neighbour of Coxs Hall I fully support the extension 
of the conservation area to include the garden 

Noted with thanks 

210378999 
 

I was pleased to receive this document.  It offers useful 
and informative historical background and its presentation 
is impressive. 
 
I consider the proposed adjustments to the conservation 
area to be relevant and appropriate and therefore fully 
support the revised plan.   
 
In recent times Stanford in the Vale has been subject to a 
number of housing developments which have inevitably 
changed the nature of what was a well balanced rural 
village. 
 
In my view it is important to maintain an updated 

Noted with thanks 

Page 51

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/stanfordconservation


9 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

conversation area plan and preserve the setting and 
character of longstanding natural, architectural and also 
historical features. 

210708819 Thank you for consulting us on the Somerset Statement 
of Community Involvement. This email forms for the basis 
of our response.  
Network Rail is a statutory undertaker responsible for 
maintaining and operating the country’s railway 
infrastructure and associated estate.  Network Rail owns, 
operates, maintains and develops the main rail network.  
This includes the railway tracks, stations, signalling 
systems, bridges, tunnels, level crossings and viaducts.  
The preparation of development plan policy is important 
in relation to the protection and enhancement of Network 
Rail’s infrastructure. 
In respect of plan making, the Council is required to 
engage with some groups to meet the regulations. 
Network Rail has been identified as a specific 
consultation body for Local Plans. Rail Network operators 
have also been identified for consultation on applications 
for planning permission.   
Network Rail wish to be consulted on the two main areas 
of planning both, planning policy, and planning proposals 
within 10m of railway land or on any development that 
may adversely affect/impact the safe operation of the 
railway. 
Network Rail require to be consulted on Neighbourhood 
plans where railway/ level crossings are included within 
the plan area. 
Level Crossings 
Any development of land which would result in a material 
increase or significant change in the character of traffic 
using rail crossings should be refused unless, in 
consultation with Network Rail, it can either be 
demonstrated that they safety will not be compromised, or 
where safety is compromised serious mitigation measures 
would be incorporated to prevent any increased safety 
risk as a requirement of any permission.  
Network Rail has a strong policy to guide and improve its 
management of level crossings, which aims to; reduce 
risk at level crossings, reduce the number and types of 
level crossings, ensure level crossings are fit for purpose, 
ensure Network Rail works with users / stakeholders and 
supports enforcement initiatives. Without significant 
consultation with Network Rail and if proved as required, 
approved mitigation measures, Network Rail would be 
extremely concerned if any future development impacts 
on the safety and operation of any of the level crossings 
listed above. The safety of the operational railway and of 
those crossing it is of the highest importance to Network 
Rail. 
Level crossings can be impacted in a variety of ways by 

Appears to be an 
incorrect consultation 
response from Network 
Rail 

Page 52



10 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

planning proposals: 
• By a proposal being directly next to a level crossing 
• By the cumulative effect of development added over 
time 
• By the type of crossing involved 
• By the construction of large developments (commercial 
and residential) where road access to and from site 
includes a level crossing 
• By developments that might impede pedestrians ability 
to hear approaching trains 
• By proposals that may interfere with pedestrian and 
vehicle users’ ability to see level crossing warning signs 
• By any developments for schools, colleges or nurseries 
where minors in numbers may be using a level crossing 
• By any development or enhancement of the public rights 
of way 
It is Network Rail’s and indeed the Office of Rail 
Regulation’s (ORR) policy to reduce risk at level 
crossings not to increase risk as could be the case with 
an increase in usage at the level crossings in question. 
The Office of Rail Regulators, in their policy, hold Network 
Rail accountable under the Management of Health and 
Safety at Work Regulations 1999, and that risk control 
should, where practicable, be achieved through the 
elimination of level crossings in favour of bridges or 
diversions. 
The Council have a statutory responsibility under 
planning legislation to consult the statutory rail undertaker 
where a proposal for development is likely to result in a 
material increase in the rail volume or a material change 
in the character of traffic using a level crossing over a 
railway:- 
• (Schedule 4 (j) of the Town & Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) Order, 2015) 
requires that “…development which is likely to result in a 
material increase in the volume or a material change in 
the character of traffic using a level crossing over a 
railway” (public footpath, public or private road) the 
Planning Authority’s Highway Engineer must submit 
details to both the Secretary of State for Transport and 
Network Rail for separate approval.  
As Network Rail is a publicly funded organisation with a 
regulated remit it would not be reasonable to require 
Network Rail to fund rail improvements necessitated by 
commercial development.  It is therefore appropriate to 
require developer contributions to fund such 
improvements. 
We trust these comments will be useful in the preparation 
of the forthcoming plan documents. 
 

211282915 Keeping and extending conservation area is vital for the 
local environment. Additionally the "Important Open 

Noted with thanks 

Page 53



11 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

Space" by Cox's Hall is vital to be left open for reasons of 
conservation. 
 

211368413 To Whom it may concern 
I have reviewed the proposed Stanford in the Vale 
Conservation area consultation document. Please use the 
following OneDrive link to assess your pdf document ( as 
the file is to large to attach to this form) which has the 
areas highlighted in yellow indicating the areas with my 
related comments.  Please download the document to 
see the comments, which can be seen by clicking on the 
yellow highlighted area or small speech bubble symble in 
each highlighted area. 
 
The majority of the comments I have made in the 
document relate to the out dated understanding of the 
buried and build archaeological environment at Stanford 
in the Vale.  Attached is my PhD thesis on the 
Archaeology of Stanford in the Vale, which was 
completed in September 2022.  The main sections which 
will be of help in regards understanding the changing 
nature of Stanford's buried/standing archaeology and 
history, are discussed in Chapters 4 and 5, the Results 
and Discussion chapters.  If you require access to the 
Appendixes, please send an request by email to the 
above address, as a link can be sent over to access 
these. 
 
I hope this is of help, and if you have any questions 
please let me know 
 

Noted with thanks, 
detailed comments below 
in response to annotated 
version sent via email 

212372817 Parish Council's comments provided as pdf and shown at 
the end of this table 
 

The building identified as 
Long Acre and proposed 
for inclusion in the 
Parish's suggested 
extensions is a Grade II 
Listed Building and will 
be shown on the maps 
within the appraisal, it 
therefore does not need 
to be added to the non-
designated heritage 
assets list.  
 
The proposed extension 
beyond that already 
proposed along 
Horsecroft (areas X and 
Z) would include a much 
larger area of open 
space that currently 
provides the rural setting 
to the built form of the 
Conservation Area. On 

Page 54



12 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

visiting the area, the 
conservation team noted 
the attractive rural 
character of this area and 
recognised that there is a 
legible historic routeway 
here that better defines 
the historic extent of the 
built up village – this 
forms the proposed 
boundary extension that 
was consulted upon.  
Whilst it is noted that the 
listed Long Acre Farm 
has historically sat at the 
furthest extent of the 
village here, the 
intervening area is not of 
the same historic 
character and would be 
better remaining outside 
the designated boundary 
in order to better define 
the character of the 
setting of the 
conservation area. 
Guidance on the 
designation of 
Conservation Areas 
recommends that large 
areas of open space are 
not included unless they 
represent former 
important built areas.  
Conservation Areas are 
designed to reflect 
historic built and man-
made areas and the 
inclusion of open fields 
and rural spaces outside 
built settlement edges 
would erode the 
significance of the built 
form. The trackway 
connection is noted in the 
draft document as an 
important connection 
between rural 
settlements but further 
inclusion of open space 
is not considered to add 
sufficient historic or 
architectural interest to 
the designated area as 
defined in Historic 
England guidance. 
Area Y includes the fields 

Page 55



13 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

to the north of the village 
connecting to the historic 
hamlet of Bow. This area 
was also assessed by the 
Conservation Team 
during the assessment of 
the area and was not 
considered to contribute 
sufficient historic or 
architectural interest to 
the area. The former Mill 
and the legibility of this 
within the existing 
boundary is considered 
sufficient. The Ecological 
value of this area is not in 
question but would be 
more appropriately 
protected within a more 
wide reaching 
Neighbourhood Plan 
policy than within this 
SPD. 
 

212575349 I have looked through the Stanford in the Vale 
Conservation Area Appraisal and I am impressed with it.  
 
I am impressed with the appraisal document but have a 
few comments to make.  
 
Page 6 left hand page – first sentence of paragraph 3 
states: Stanford has had few, but fruitful, archaeological 
field excavations.  
This is not true. Relatively few villages have had such 
detailed archaeological field excavations as Stanford in 
the Vale has benefited from. David Ashby has based his 
bachelor, masters and PhD degrees on field work done 
here.  
 
Page 8 – the photo of the church needs a caption. It is 
Fig. 5   
Page 9 -right-hand page – 4th line of second paragraph - 
the word ‘workers’ needs an apostrophe so it reads: 
workers’  
Page 10 left-hand page third paragraph first line – 
misleading as it reads - correct it so it reads: The most 
notable additions to the conservation area in the 20th 
century rather than The most notable additions to 
Stanford in the 20th century    
 Page 10  labourers in the caption to fig. 7 needs an 
apostrophe so it reads: labourers’  
Page 11 right-hand page – fourth line of second 
paragraph – I think some keep horses for pleasure would 
be more accurate than many keep horses for pleasure.  

We have been provided 
with Dr Ashby's work 
which was published 
after the draft was 
written.  
 

Page 56



14 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

Page 11 right-hand page – last paragraph. Change to 
read: the church of St. Denys, the services and bell 
ringing having taken place there for nearly a millennium. 
Rather then saying having run continuously which clearly 
isn’t the case.  
Page 17 right-hand page – second paragraph – add an 
apostrophe to labourers so it reads: labourers’ cottages  
 

212228614 
 

Firstly, we would like to say that the Consultation 
Document is an excellent piece of work - interesting, 
thorough and well-written. Many congratulations. 
 
We agree with all the conclusions and recommendations 
in the Consultation Document, but have a further 
suggestion which we would like to see incorporated. 
 
We live in , a Grade II listed property located 
at . The house and outbuilding fall within 
the current Conservation Area, as does a non-contiguous 
part of our garden. Together these represent about 50% 
of the total curtilage area. The other 50% of the curtilage 
is currently outwith the Conservation Area. This part of 
the property contains a rectangular walled area (probably 
a kitchen garden originally) which appears on the 1878 
Ordnance Survey map as well as a length of 6' high dry 
stone walling which also appears on the 1878 map. 
 
I attach a pdf map showing Priors Close. The full property 
area is shaded grey. The conservation area boundary is 
marked in red and walls outside the conservation area 
dating from earlier than 1878 are marked in blue.  I also 
attach three photographs showing views of the relevant 
stone walling. (see appended below) 
 
Our view is that the Conservation Area should be 
amended so that the entirety of the curtilage of Priors 
Close is included within it to ensure that all the stone 
walls on the property shown in the 1878 OS map are 
given appropriate protected status. 
 
If you would like to arrange a visit to inspect the property 
and conservation assets, please contact us on 07545 
300034. 
 

This is very useful 
information and we are 
very grateful to have had 
it brought to our 
attention. 

212615865 Priors Farm Barn, Chapel Road 
Appendix C: Non-Designated Heritage Assets, page 37 
Priors Farm Barn property has existing commenced 
permission 'Commencement of P15/V0182/FUL by 
construction of 46rtn parking to P15/V0182/FUL' under 
P18/V0734/LDP issued 3 May 2018. 
P15/V1044/DIS 'Discharge of conditions' covers the 
materials considered acceptable including: 

Thank you for 
highlighting this as the 
conservation team were 
not aware of this 
planning history.   

Page 57



15 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

- Rendered plinths - Mononcouche through colour 
cement-based render ‘ivory’ 
- Roof - natural slate Britlock Sandtoft ‘graphite’ 
- Cladding - Siberian larch 
 

213675855 
 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 
 
Thank you for consulting Historic England on the 
conservation area appraisal for Stanford-in-the-Vale. 
 
We welcome the writing of a conservation area appraisal 
for the conservation area and have no specific comments 
to make. 

Noted with thanks 

213676242 
 

Thank you for your consultation request on the above 
dated and received by Natural England on 1st February 
2023. 
Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our 
statutory purpose is to ensure that the natural 
environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for 
the benefit of present and future generations, thereby 
contributing to sustainable development. 
Natural England does not consider that this Conservation 
area appraisal poses any likely risk or opportunity in 
relation to our statutory purpose, and so does not wish to 
comment on this consultation. 
The lack of comment from Natural England should not be 
interpreted as a statement that there are no impacts on 
the natural environment. Other bodies and individuals 
may wish to make comments that might help the Local 
Planning Authority (LPA) to fully take account of any 
environmental risks 
and opportunities relating to this document. 
If you disagree with our assessment of this proposal as 
low risk, or should the proposal be amended in a way 
which significantly affects its impact on the natural 
environment, then in accordance with Section 4 of the 
Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006, 
please consult Natural England again. 
 

Noted with thanks 

213678053 To Whom It May Concern: 
The attached are a combination of comments by 
knowledgeable members of the Local History Society and 
one or two of my own. Separately, I will shortly forward 
the work of the University of Winchester archaeologist, Dr 
David Ashby, who has conducted numerous 
investigations in SITV since 2008. 
 
No one queries the conclusions in the appraisal 
concerning the Conservation Area. All are complimentary 
about the extensive work on the history of the village but 
find that there is room to offer help in light of recent 
research and extensive local knowledge. We hope that 

Mapping issues have 
been noted and will be 
amended in the final draft 
to provide easier 
reference.  
 
Many of the detailed 
comments made repeat 
those made by other 
consultees.  
 
Corrections and 
References will be 
updated within the draft 

Page 58



16 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

you will be able to take our comments into account in 
developing the final version of the document as, no doubt, 
it will need to stand as an important public document for 
many years. 
 

COMMENTS ON DRAFT STANFORD 
CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISAL, 7 Feb 2023 
General comments 
The pdf reader I am using does not work with layers; in 
this case it does not allow me to turn off the Instructions 
or to view the conservation area map. 
The Stanford appraisal seems to me to be well presented. 
I cannot see the map of the conservation areas, but the 
selection of buildings, both designated and non-
designated, seems both fair and appropriate. 
Specific comments on the text 
Section 3.0, 2nd para: It is a bit of an overstatement to 
talk of “extreme” population fluctuations, as changes in 
Stanford were probably no greater than any other 
comparable village. Stanford was relatively large and 
prosperous in medieval times with a peak population 
probably just in excess of 400 in the early 14th century, 
dropping to perhaps around 200 after the Black Death. 
From 1400 onwards there were centuries of steady 
increase, reaching a population of 1075 in 1861, before 
dropping again in line with the national decline in 
agricultural prosperity. The suggestion that Stanford may 
have been larger in the past than in more recent times is 
not borne out by the population records. 
Section 4.1, 3rd para, last sentence: The charter was 
granted, and Church Green would have been the logical 
location for a market and fair, but there is no written 
record so far located which would support its actual 
implementation. The last part should read, “of what was 
then a large settlement”. Being “called a town” is at best 
controversial, and at worst untrue; certainly it was not 
constitutionally or functionally a town. 
Section 4.1, 5th para: Should end, “though no evidence 
exists for this”. (It is generally believed that Richard and 
Anne were married sometime between March and June 
1472 at Westminster. There is no evidence at all that 
Stanford was the venue.) 
Section 4.1, 6th para is nonsense in that it mixes up who 
“held” the manor and who might have been a “lessee”; 
also it was not “fractious”. It should read, “After the Battle 
of Bosworth Field in 1485 the manor of Stanford was 
forfeit to the victorious Henry VII (NOT the VI) and after 
some years in the Crown’s hands the manor was held 
from 1520 in succession by the Fettiplace, Englefield and 
Knollys families. It was then divided into two moieties held 
by two prominent families until the late 18th century when 
it was reunited under Edward Loveden of Buscot Park.” 

document.  

Page 59



17 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

Section 4.2: Vine Cottage predates the Reformation; it is 
essentially timber-framed. 
Section 4.3: The canal opened in 1810, not 1820. 
Section 5.2: Historically sheep were far more important 
and numerous than dairy or beef herds. 
Section 5.2: 2nd para: “ maintains its historic use as a 
festival and market place” is misleading. It is not used as 
a market place at all, and the summer fete is a relatively 
modern happening. 
Section 5.3, 2nd para: “Horsecroft”, not “Horsecroft 
Road”. 
Section 5.3, 3rd para: As a resident of Chapel Road I can 
assure you that it is anything but “low-traffic and quiet”. 
From 5:30am for nearly three hours it sees a very high 
traffic flow. 
Page 33, caption to 20 High Street: We have drawings 
which confirm this was built as the schoolteacher’s house 
at the same time as the school itself. 
Page 35, caption to The Anchor: Records show the lease 
as a pub back to 1799. 
 

 COMMENTS 
1. Page 6 left hand page – first sentence of paragraph 3 
states: Stanford has had few, but fruitful, archaeological 
field excavations.  
This is not true. Relatively few villages have had such 
detailed archaeological field excavations as Stanford in 
the Vale has benefited from. David Ashby has based his 
bachelor, masters and PhD degrees on field work done 
here.  
1. Page 8 – the photo of the church needs a caption. It is 
Fig 5 
2. Page 9 -right-hand page – 4th line of second 
paragraph - the word ‘workers’ needs an apostrophe so it 
reads: workers’  
3. Page 10 left-hand page third paragraph first line – 
misleading as it reads - correct it so it reads: The most 
notable additions to the conservation area in the 20th 
century rather than The most notable additions to 
Stanford in the 20th century  
4. Page 10 labourers in the caption to fig. 7 needs an 
apostrophe so it reads: labourers’  
5. Page 11 right-hand page – fourth line of second 
paragraph – I think some keep horses for pleasure would 
be more accurate than many keep horses for pleasure.  
6. Page 11 right-hand page – last paragraph. Change to 
read: the church of St. Denys, the services and bell 
ringing having taken place there for nearly a millennium. 
Rather then saying having run continuously which clearly 
isn’t the case.  
7. Page 17 right-hand page – second paragraph – add an 
apostrophe to labourers so it reads: labourers’ cottages 

Page 60



18 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

 
To the above and to David Ashby's notes I have only the 
following to add: 
1. p16 C. Millennium Green is administered not by the 
PPC, but by the Millennium Green Trust created by the 
Parish Council for that purpose. 
2. p31 App C: 53-55 High St. Originally a single 
farmhouse dating to 1726 (builder's plaque on wall), 
consistent with large fireplaces at either end. The 
conversion to three small residences was much later. The 
present arrangement in two residences dates from the 
1960s. 
 
David refers to material on Horsecroft in your report (not 
Horsecroft Road, by the way). This led to some local 
discussion on Horsecroft's complicated past, leading to 
the following suggestions for some sight rewording in 
your report, viz: 
p7 ... trade route eastwards via Charney Bassett towards 
Abingdon ... 
p12 ... The line of the ancient route, once a Roman road, 
today becomes a dirt brideway at the end of Horsecroft as 
it ... 
 
Please feel free to come back to us with any queries. 
 

213678784 The following has been extracted from an annotated copy 
of the consultation draft document by Dr. David Ashby as 
the original file was too large to attach to the survey and 
too large to include in the consultation report.  
 
Page 4 
Highlighted text "The farming hamlet of Bow" 
Comment: However, it should be noted that 'Bow' is part 
of the parish of SITV 
 
Page 6 
Highlighted text: "Stanford has had few" 
Comment: This is not totally true.  They have been quite a 
few fruitful excavations.  Over 63 test pits and 19 
evaluation trenches as part of research alone, plus 
communal archaeological work. 
 
Highlighted text: "besides St. Denys" 
Comment: Vine Cottage and Church green cottages have 
both also has also both had in depth building surveys 
which have been published. 
 
Highlighted text: "Cox’s Hall, Orchard House, Cromwell 
House, and Manor House," 
Comment: Vine cottage and the Old Rectory should be 
added to this list 

We are very grateful to 
have received such 
detailed comments on 
the draft. At the time of 
writing this draft, Dr 
Ashby’s Thesis had not 
been published and is 
not a report that can be 
easily accessed for the 
purposes of drafting this 
Development 
Management tools and 
SPDs.  
Updates will be made to 
the document where the 
information provided by 
Dr Ashby corrects or 
improves upon the detail 
already provided in the 
document.  
We do not propose to 
add large amounts of 
new detail as the 
document is intended as 
a tool to aid the 
assessment of 
development proposals 
and provide a context to 

Page 61



19 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

 
Page 7 
Highlighted text: "bridleway" 
Comment: Horse croft was only recently (in the last 100 
years) changed to a bridleway.  prior to this it was a 
road/track joining Charny Basset to SITV 
 
Page 8 
Highlighted text: "The Romans were especially active" 
Comment: What about the pre-Roman evidence? There 
is archaeological evidence for Mesolithic, Neolithic, 
Bronze Age and Iron Age activity at Stanford. 
 
Highlighted text: "1086 as having 51 households" 
Comment: This should have a refrence to: Morris, J. 
1979. Doomsday Book. Phillimore, Chichester 
 
Highlighted text: "royal charter in 1230, permitting a 
weekly market and annual fair" 
Comment: This should have a reference: 
https://archives.history.ac.uk/gazetteer/gazweb2.html  
 
Highlighted text: "Little Ice Age and the Black Death, and 
partly due to a collapse in the wool trade to Europe, 
meant growth in Stanford plateaued." 
Comment: Reference missing: Ashby, D. 2022. Stanford 
in the Vale in Context:  A Multi-Disciplinary Approach to 
Rural Settlement Development in Oxfordshire. PhD 
Thesis, University of Winchester 
 
Highlighted text: "Black Death" 
Comment: Plague rather than black death. most likely 
anthrax or typhoid 
 
Page 9 
Highlighted text: "Most of the workers housing around 
Horsecroft and along Chapel Road was built during this 
time to accommodate the new labourers" 
Comment: As well as Bow road as part of the brick works 
 
Highlighted text: "Vine Cottage" 
Comment: This was not replaced, it was more 
expanded/adapted.  there is still a late medieval crook 
house at its centra 
 
Highlighted text: "Manor House" 
Comment: This was stone during the Medieval period, not 
timber. 
 
Highlighted text: "The Compton Census of 1676 notes a 
population of 260, after a loss of 33 in 1649 due to 
plague." 

build upon. Very detailed 
assessments should be 
provided by developers 
and their contractors in 
support of proposals as 
per Local and National 
Policy Requirements – 
high levels of very 
specific detail would be 
beyond the remit of this 
document but 
improvements will be 
made to references to Dr 
Ashby’s research in order 
to aid interested parties 
to find out more.  

Page 62



20 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

Comment: Missing reference. 
 
Highlighted text: "Cox's Hall" 
Comment: The current coxes hall building was, however it 
is highly likely that the current wing is an extension of a 
earlier medieval stone hall, as indicated by documentary 
souse and archaeological evidence. 
 
Page 10 
Highlighted text: "today the United Reformed Church)" 
Comment: This is now in privet ownership 
 
Page 11 
Highlighted text: "The earliest evidence of a settlement 
appears in linear form on High Street along what would 
have been a bridleway connecting Shellingford and 
Charney Bassett." 
Comment: I presume this is making reference to the 
Roman settlement?  If so this is not the earliest evidence 
for a settlement.  there is archaeological evidence for 2x 
nucleated settlement at SITV in the Neolithic. 
 
Highlighted text: "This historic shift from one development 
pattern to another resulted in the “long, straggling village” 
pattern we see today, and is a key ingredient to 
Stanford’s special interest." 
Comment: The archaeological evidence suggest that the 
High street and Chapel road were likely lied down from 
the Roman period, with a fort and related vecus.  
therefore its straggly nature much predated its post 
Saxon form. 
 
Highlighted text: "Village plots are generous" 
Comment: It should be noted that the majority of these 
large garden plots likely date back to the medieval period. 
 
Page 13 
Highlighted text: "Much of the limestone rubble used 
might have come from the nearby Shellingford Quarry" 
Comment: As well as SITV own quarry pit, which was 
located where the Farm Piece estate now is. 
 
Page 15 
Highlighted text: "The small areas" 
Comment: This forms Lower Green, one of the 3 
important Greens in the village. 
 
Page 16 
Highlighted text: "but are today administered by a Public 
Purposes Charity" 
Comment: Only millennium green is overseen by the 
charity.  the sheep paddock is in privet hands (Owned by 

Page 63



21 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

Ashdown House). 
 
Highlighted text: "may once have been private land" 
Comment: There were all part of the Manor House farm 
estates. 
 
Highlighted text: "Millenium Green" 
Comment: Has an earthwork at its northern end which 
forms the Saxon, Medieval and post medieval Manor 
House platform. 
 
Page 18 
Highlighted text: "Upper Green" 
Comment: Upper green also has a rectangular earthworm 
relating to the Pound which was once located on it.  likely 
medieval in date. 
 
Page 22 
Highlighted text: "The council will aim to" 
Comment: Should be added that subtable archaeological 
surveys for example building recording, excavation, 
geophysics, watching briefs should be undertaking prior 
to development work being undertaken, to prevent the 
loss of the archaeological environment, recored by 
record. 
 
Page 25 
Highlighted text: "United Reformed Church" 
Comment: It should also be esquires made with Historic 
England to add it to the Listed Buildings register, to 
prevent demolition/major external changes. 
 
Page 26 
Highlighted text: "Stanford’s oldest residential building: 
Orchard House" 
Comment: This is not Stanford's oldish residential hose. 
Vine Cottage and the Church green cottages are much 
older.  
 
Page 27 
Highlighted text: "Selected Bibliography" 
Comment: Update bibliography with missing reference's, 
as stated in previous comments. 
 
Page 28 
Highlighted text: "No settlement features of this date have 
been identified so the occupation is likely to have been 
nomadic and ephemeral, probably drawn to the area by 
the river and its tributaries" 
Comment: This is not true.  there is evidence for constant 
settlement activity at SITV since the Neolithic onwards, as 
well as lots of hunter gather activity with flint working 

Page 64



22 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

areas in the Mesolithic.  See: Ashby, D. 2022. Stanford in 
the Vale in Context:  
A Multi-Disciplinary Approach to Rural Settlement 
Development in Oxfordshire. PhD Thesis, University of 
Winchester 
 
Highlighted text: "or farmstead" 
Comment: Defiantly a settlement, most likely a fort with 
vecus. See: Ashby, D. 2022. Stanford in the Vale in 
Context: A Multi-Disciplinary Approach to Rural 
Settlement Development in Oxfordshire. PhD Thesis, 
University of Winchester 
 
Highlighted text: "Ashdown House" 
Comment: Passable evidence also for an early Saxon 
timer framed hall in Ashdown House paddock.  See: 
Ashby, D. 2022. Stanford in the Vale in Context:  A Multi-
Disciplinary Approach to Rural Settlement Development 
in Oxfordshire. PhD Thesis, University of Winchester 
 
Page 29 
Highlighted text: "pound" 
Comment: The Pound was located on Upper Green and 
likely dates to the Medieval period.  there is a earthwork 
and archaeological evidence for this: See: Ashby, D. 
2022. Stanford in the Vale in Context: A Multi-Disciplinary 
Approach to Rural Settlement Development in 
Oxfordshire. PhD Thesis, University of Winchester 
 
Highlighted text: "The Manor House dates to the C16th" 
Comment: The current manor house.  however it overlays 
earlier manor house structures dating to the Medieval and 
Saxon periods. See: Ashby, D. 2022. Stanford in the Vale 
in Context: A Multi-Disciplinary Approach to Rural 
Settlement Development in Oxfordshire. PhD Thesis, 
University of Winchester 
 
Highlighted text: "Cropmarks" 
Comment: There are parchments and earthwork, not crop 
marks. 
 
Page 30 
Highlighted text: "Cox's Hall" 
Comment: And Wall Approximately 15 Metres South of 
Coxs Hall also II* 

 
5. You can upload any supporting documents using the button below. 
 
3 respondents attached supporting documents to support their comments which can be found in 
the Appendix. 

Page 65



23 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

6. Which of the following describes how you identify yourself? 

Most respondents identify as a male (9) and only 2 respondents identify as a female. 

7. How old are you? 

 
 
There was a fairly even spread of respondents across the age brackets with 2 respondents each 
from the 45-54, 55-64, 65-74 and 75+ age groups.  Only one respondent is aged between 25 to 
34. The remaining respondent preferred not to say. 

0% 
(0 respondents)

10% 
(1 respondent) 

0% 
(0 respondents)

20% 
(2 respondents)

20% 
(2 respondents) 20% 

(2 respondents)

20% 
(2 respondents)

10% 
(1 respondent)

16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75+ Prefer not to say

82% 
(9 respondents)

18% 
(2 respondents)

Male

Female

Page 66



24 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

8. What is your ethnic group?  

 
Other (please specify): 
• Please note you will not eradicate racism by asking questions like these 

 
Most respondents (8) said they are from a ‘White British - English, Welsh, Scottish and 
Northern Irish’ ethnic group. 2 respondents preferred not to say and the remaining respondent 
selected ‘other’.   

 
9. Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or disability 

which has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or more? 

 
If yes, please specify: 
• Server Dyslexia, Dysgraphia, Hypermobile Ehlers-Danlos Syndrome (hEDS) 

 
Most respondents (9) said their day-to-day activities aren’t limited because of a health problem 
or disability which has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or more.  

18% 
(2 respondents)

73% 
(8 respondents)

9% 
(1 respondent)

Prefer not to say

English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern
Irish, British

Other (please specify):

9% 
(1 respondent)

82% 
(9 respondents)

9% 
(1 respondent)

Yes
No
Prefer not to say

Page 67



25 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

Only 1 respondent said yes, due to Server Dyslexia, Dysgraphia, Hypermobile Ehlers-Danlos 
Syndrome (hEDS). The remaining respondent preferred not to answer this question.  

 
10. How did you hear about the review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area 
appraisal? 

 
Other (please specify): 
• Local History society 
 
Most respondents (5) heard about the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation via 
email and word of mouth (5), followed by the council’s website (3). The remaining respondents 
(3) heard about the consultation via their parish council (1), district council (1) and the 
remaining respondent selected ‘other’.

46% 
(5 respondents)

0% 0%

27% 
(3 respondents)

0%

9% 
(1 respondents)

9% 
(1 respondents)

0%

46% 
(5 respondents)

0% 0%

9% 
(1 respondents)

Page 68



26 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

SURVEY 
A copy of the online survey is provided below.  

Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area 
 
We are carrying out a review of the conservation area in Stanford in the Vale. 
 
As part of the review process, we are now inviting comments on the Stanford in the Vale 
Conservation Area Appraisal document. This includes proposed changes to the conservation 
area boundary in the following places (from section 8 of the appraisal document): 
 
• The addition of green verges at the western end of the High Street and the former orchards 

adjacent to Orchard House and 17 Upper Green.  
• The additions of 9-10, 15-24, 27 Horsecroft, and 35 High Street. 
• The removal of 25-27 High Street. 
• Small boundary adjustments at Bear House, Cox's Hall, Penstone's Court, and Hunter's 

Piece. 
 

In some areas, the revision is intended to update any issues caused by past mapping and 
changes to property boundaries over time. In other areas, the boundary could be extended to 
areas that add to the architectural and historic interest of the area and are therefore worthy of 
including within the designated boundary.  
 
You will have the opportunity to comment on the above proposed changes and Stanford in the 
Vale Conservation Area Appraisal document in this survey. 
 
You can find out more information about the review and download the appraisal document on 
our website.  
 
We are inviting your comments on the proposed changes during a five week consultation 
period which runs from Wednesday 1 February until 11.59pm Wednesday 8 March, 2023.  

 
Personal details 
If you are responding as an individual, you are not required to provide your name or personal 
details. If you are responding on behalf of a business, organisation, or other we will ask for its 
name and this information may be published. Any personal information you provide to the 
council within your comments that could identify you will not be published. Further information 
on data protection is available on in our privacy statement. 
 
Queries? 
If you have any questions on the draft appraisal, survey or require it in an alternative format 
(for example large print, Braille, audio, email, Easy Read and alternative languages) please 
contact our Conservation team at conservationconsults@southandvale.gov.uk or call 01235 
422600.  
 
What happens next 
After the consultation period ends, we will consider your comments and make appropriate 

Page 69

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/stanfordconservation
https://files.smartsurvey.io/2/0/T06KIHEU/21_10_2022_privacy_policy__planning_consultations.pdf
mailto:conservationconsults@southandvale.gov.uk
tel:01235%20422600
tel:01235%20422600


27 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

changes to the draft document and boundary revision before we proceed to adopt it via the 
council’s cabinet process. Once adopted, we will publish the cabinet report, new 
Conservation Area Appraisal document and adopted revised boundary on our website. 
 
A bit about you  

1. Are you responding as: * 
 

   an individual / member of the public 

   a business / organisation 

   Other (please specify): 
  

 

 
2. Please provide the name of the business / organisation, council or body you are 
representing:  
 
  

3. What is your connection to Stanford in the Vale? Please tick all that apply.  
 

   I live here 

   I work here 

   I live outside Stanford in the Vale 

   I regularly visit Stanford in the Vale 

   I have an interest in the area 

   Other (please specify): 
  

 

 
Your comments   

4. Please provide your comments on the appraisal document below. 
 
You can view the Stanford in the Vale Appraisal document on our website. If you are 
particularly concerned with the proposed boundary revision, you can find more detail on these 
in section 8 of the appraisal. 
 
If you would like to see this document amended or improved in any way, it would be helpful if 
you could please explain what changes you are seeking. * 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

Page 70

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/building-conservation-and-design/conservation-areas/designated-conservation-areas-character-appraisals-management-plans-and-maps/
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/stanfordconservation


28 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

5. You can upload any supporting documents using the button below.  
 
Choose File  
 
5. Our commitment to equal access for all  
We are committed to making sure that residents have equal access to all council 
services. Please help us to keep track of how successfully we are achieving this by ticking the 
appropriate boxes below. 
 
All questions are optional. All information is confidential and will only be used to help us 
monitor whether views differ across the community.  
 
6. Which of the following describes how you identify yourself?  
 

   Male 

   Female 

   Neither of the above (specify below if you would like to) 

   Prefer not to say 

   I identify as: 
  

 

 
7. How old are you?  
 

   16-24 

   25-34 

   35-44 

   45-54 

   55-64 

   65-74 

   75+ 

   Prefer not to say 
 
8. What is your ethnic group?   
 

   Prefer not to say 

White 

   English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern Irish, British 

   Irish 

   Gypsy or Irish Traveller 

   Any other white background 

Asian or Asian British 

   Indian 

Page 71



29 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

   Pakistani 

   Bangladeshi 

   Chinese 

   Any other Asian background 
 
Black or Black British 

   Caribbean 

   African 

   Any other black background 

Mixed or Multiple Ethnic Groups 

   White and Black Caribbean 

   White and Black African 

   White and Asian 

   Any other mixed background 

Other Ethnic Group 

   Arab 

   Other (please specify): 
  

 

 
9. Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or disability which 
has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or more?  
 

   Yes 

   No 

   Prefer not to say 
 
If yes, please specify:   
   

 
10. How did you hear about the review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area 
appraisal?  
 

   Email  District Council 

   Instagram  Poster 

   Facebook  Word of mouth 

   Our website  Letter 

   Twitter  Newsletter 

   Parish Council  Other (please specify): 
  

 

Page 72



30 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

 

Page 73



31 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

COMMUNICATION 
A copy of the email notification issued to the council’s consultation database is provided 
below. 

Subject: Your comments are invited on the Review of Stanford in the Vale 
Conservation Area 

Dear [NAME] 
 
We are emailing to invite you to have your say on proposed changes to the 
conservation area in Stanford in the Vale as this may be of interest to you. 
 
What is a conservation area? 
The village’s conservation area is the designated area of special architectural or historic 
interest which exists to protect the features and characteristics that make Stanford in 
the Vale a historic, unique and distinctive place. 
 
Why are we reviewing the conservation area? 
It is a requirement that all councils coordinate and publish appraisals for the 
preservation and enhancement of conservation areas and that these proposals are 
reviewed from time to time. 
 
This is the first comprehensive Conservation Area Appraisal document that has been 
produced for Stanford in the Vale. The document has been authored by the 
Conservation and Design Team at the Vale of White Horse District Council. We have a 
statutory duty to consult the public on this new document before it is adopted. 
 
Have your say as part of our review process 
As part of the review process, we are now inviting comments on the Stanford in the 
Vale Conservation Area Appraisal document. 
 
You can download the appraisal and find out more information about the review on our 
website. https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/stanfordconservation 
 
How to comment 
We are inviting your comments on the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area 
Appraisal document during a five-week consultation period which runs 
from Wednesday 1 February until 11.59pm Wednesday 8 March. 
 
The quickest and easiest way to comment is to use our online comment form. 
 
Note that this is a unique link just for you and is tied to your email address. If you would 
like to forward this message to anybody else, please refer them to the public link to the 
survey. 
 
What happens next 
After the consultation period ends, we will consider your comments and make 
appropriate changes to the draft document and boundary revision before we proceed to 

Page 74

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/stanfordconservation
https://app.smartsurvey.co.uk/survey/collect/mail/view/id/%5bSURVEYLINK%5d
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/StanfordCAACommentForm/
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/StanfordCAACommentForm/


32 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

adopt it via the council’s cabinet process. Once adopted, we will publish the cabinet 
report, new conservation area appraisal document and adopted revised boundary on 
our website. 
 
We look forward to hearing your views. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Boris van der Ree 
Conservation Enquiry Officer 
Vale of White Horse District Council 

 

If you need support to access the consultation materials, have any queries about the 
survey form or require it in an alternative format (for example: large print, Braille, audio, 
email, Easy Read or alternative languages) please email 
conservationconsults@southandvale.gov.uk or call 01235 422600. 
 
Opt-out: If you do not wish to receive further emails from us like this, please click here, 
and you will be removed from our consultation mailing list. Please note, we may still 
need to contact you for certain consultations if we have a legal obligation to do so. 
 
Data protection: Please refer to our planning consultations privacy statement 
regarding how your personal data is used for this consultation, available on the 
consultation page of our website. If you would like to know more about the council’s 
data protection registration or to find out about your personal data, please visit our 
website. 
  

 
 

Page 75

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/building-conservation-and-design/conservation-areas/designated-conservation-areas-character-appraisals-management-plans-and-maps/
http://conservationconsults@southandvale.gov.uk/
https://survey.southandvale.gov.uk/s/Remove/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/get-in-touch/consultations/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/privacy/data-protection/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/privacy/data-protection/


33 
Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation, May 2023 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION 
For information about the consultation or the results presented in this report, please 
contact: 

 
Consultation and Community Engagement Team 
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
01235 422 425 
haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk 

 

To enquire about the council’s work on the Stanford in the Vale Conservation 
Area consultation, please contact: 

 
Conservation Area Team 
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
01235 422 600 
conservationconsults@southandvale.gov.uk 

 
 

END. 

Page 76

mailto:haveyoursay@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:conservationconsults@southandvale.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Drayton Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review Adoption
	Appendix 2 - Drayton Conservation Area Appraisal Consultation Report
	CONSULTATION SUMMARY REPORT
	A review of the feedback received to the Drayton Conservation Area consultation.

	CONTENTS
	SUMMARY
	HOW WE WILL USE THE RESULTS
	BACKGROUND TO THE ENGAGMENT
	Purpose of the Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review
	Summary of the Appraisal Document and alterations to the Proposed Boundary

	ENGAGEMENT METHODOLOGY
	Reporting methodology

	QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DATA
	1. Are you responding as:
	3. What is your connection to Drayton? Please tick all that apply.
	5. You can upload any supporting documents using the button below.
	1 respondent attached a map to support their comments which can be found in the Appendix.
	6. Which of the following describes how you identify yourself?

	SURVEY
	Review of the Drayton Conservation Area
	1. Are you responding as: *
	2. Please provide the name of the business / organisation, council or body you are representing:
	3. What is your connection to Drayton? Please tick all that apply.
	4. Please provide your comments on the appraisal document below.  You can view the Drayton document on our website. If you are particularly concerned with the proposed boundary revision, you can find more detail on these in section 7 of the appraisal....
	8. What is your ethnic group?
	10. How did you hear about the review of the Drayton Conservation Area appraisal?

	APPENDIX – SUPPORTING MAP
	FURTHER INFORMATION
	Consultation and Community Engagement Team
	Conservation Area Team



	8 Stanford-in-the-Vale Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review Adoption
	Appendix 2 - Stanford-in-the-Vale Consultation Report
	CONSULTATION SUMMARY REPORT
	A review of the feedback received to the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation.

	CONTENTS
	SUMMARY
	HOW WE WILL USE THE RESULTS
	BACKGROUND TO THE ENGAGMENT
	Purpose of the Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review
	Summary of the Appraisal Document and alterations to the Proposed Boundary

	ENGAGEMENT METHODOLOGY
	Reporting methodology

	QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DATA
	1. Are you responding as:
	4. Please provide your comments on the appraisal document below.  You can view the Stanford in the Vale Appraisal document on our website. If you are particularly concerned with the proposed boundary revision, you can find more detail on these in sect...

	Other (please specify):
	 Please note you will not eradicate racism by asking questions like these
	Most respondents (8) said they are from a ‘White British - English, Welsh, Scottish and Northern Irish’ ethnic group. 2 respondents preferred not to say and the remaining respondent selected ‘other’.
	9. Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or disability which has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or more?
	If yes, please specify:
	 Server Dyslexia, Dysgraphia, Hypermobile Ehlers-Danlos Syndrome (hEDS)
	Most respondents (9) said their day-to-day activities aren’t limited because of a health problem or disability which has lasted or is expected to last 12 months or more.
	Only 1 respondent said yes, due to Server Dyslexia, Dysgraphia, Hypermobile Ehlers-Danlos Syndrome (hEDS). The remaining respondent preferred not to answer this question.
	10. How did you hear about the review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area appraisal?
	Other (please specify):
	 Local History society
	Most respondents (5) heard about the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area consultation via email and word of mouth (5), followed by the council’s website (3). The remaining respondents (3) heard about the consultation via their parish council (1), d...
	SURVEY
	Review of the Stanford in the Vale Conservation Area
	1. Are you responding as: *
	3. What is your connection to Stanford in the Vale? Please tick all that apply.
	4. Please provide your comments on the appraisal document below.  You can view the Stanford in the Vale Appraisal document on our website. If you are particularly concerned with the proposed boundary revision, you can find more detail on these in sect...

	FURTHER INFORMATION
	Consultation and Community Engagement Team
	Conservation Area Team






